
Monday, November 2, 2020 AGENDA Page 1 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA & RULES COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL MEETING 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2020 
2:30 P.M. 

Committee Members:  
Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Sophie Hahn and Susan Wengraf 

Alternate: Councilmember Ben Bartlett 

PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  

Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 
2020, this meeting of the City Council Agenda & Rules Committee will be conducted exclusively 
through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  Please be advised that pursuant to the 
Executive Order, and to ensure the health and safety of the public by limiting human contact that 
could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting location available.   

To access the meeting remotely using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android 
device: Use URL https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87898323220.  If you do not wish for your name to 
appear on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to 
be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon on the screen. 

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and Enter Meeting ID: 878 
9832 3220.  If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, press *9 
and wait to be recognized by the Chair.  

Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Agenda & Rules Committee by 5:00 
p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed to the members of the Committee
in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official record.  City offices are currently
closed and cannot accept written communications in person.

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87898323220


 
Monday, November 2, 2020 AGENDA Page 2 

AGENDA 
 

Roll Call 

Public Comment 
 
Review of Agendas 

1. Approval of Minutes: October 26, 2020 

2. Review and Approve Draft Agenda: 
a. 11/17/20 – 6:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting 

3. Selection of Item for the Berkeley Considers Online Engagement Portal 

4. Adjournments In Memory 
 

Scheduling 

5. Council Worksessions Schedule 

6. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee for Scheduling 

7. Land Use Calendar 
 

Referred Items for Review 
 

8. Discussion Regarding Impact of COVID-19 (novel coronavirus) on Meetings 
of Legislative Bodies 
 
 

 

 

  

2



Unscheduled Items 

 
Monday, November 2, 2020 AGENDA Page 3 

 
 
9. 

These items are not scheduled for discussion or action at this meeting.  The Committee may schedule 
these items to the Action Calendar of a future Committee meeting. 

Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery 
From: Councilmember Droste (Author), Councilmember Robinson (Co-
Sponsor), Councilmember Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor) 
Referred: June 15, 2020 
Due: November 30, 2020 
Recommendation: 1. Reorganize existing commissions with the goal of achieving 
20 total commissions; 2. Reorganize existing commissions within various 
departments to ensure that no single department is responsible for more than five 
commissions; 3. Reorganize commissions within the Public Works Department to 
ensure Public Works oversees no more than three commissions; 4. Refer to the City 
Manager and every policy committee to agendize at the next meeting available to 
discuss commissions that are in their purview and make recommendations to the full 
Council on how to reorganize and address the various policy areas. Commission 
members should be notified and chairs should be invited to participate. Policy 
committee members are encouraged to consider the renaming of some 
commissions in order to ensure that all policy areas are addressed.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lori Droste, Councilmember, District 8, (510) 981-7180 

 

10. Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to prohibit Officeholder 
Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12 (Item contains supplemental material) 
From: Fair Campaign Practices Commission 
Referred: July 28, 2020 
Due: January 29, 2021 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt first 
reading of an ordinance amending the Berkeley Election Reform Act, Berkeley 
Municipal Code Chapter 2.12, to prohibit Officeholder Accounts (See Section 
18531.62. Elected State Officeholder Bank Accounts, Regulations of the Fair 
Political Practices Commission).   
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Sam Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 
 

11. Relinquishments and grants from Councilmembers’ office budgets 
From: Open Government Commission 
Referred: August 31, 2020 
Due: February 15, 2021 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution creating a temporary advisory committee 
consisting of three (3) members each of the City Council and the Open Government 
Commission (“OGC”) to enable discussion between the Council and the OGC to 
make recommendations governing relinquishments and grants from 
Councilmembers’ office budgets.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Sam Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 

  

3



Unscheduled Items 

 
Monday, November 2, 2020 AGENDA Page 4 

12. Implement Protocols for managing the City Council Meetings on Zoom 
From: Councilmember Davila (Author) 
Referred: October 26, 2020 
Due: March 29, 2021 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution with the following actions: 
1. Implement the following protocols and criteria for City Council Meetings held on 
the Zoom Video Conferencing service, which shall take effect upon adoption, as well 
as adding the following section to the City Council Rules of Procedures:  
A) Gallery view showing the list of all participants and attendees; B) Display the 
timer, during public comment on any item on the agenda, the timer for each speaker 
shall be displayed. The timer countdown shall start when the person starts speaking, 
and shall notify the speaker their time has exceeded the allotted time; but will stop 
when the speaker stops speaking. In the event of technical difficulties during a 
speaker presentation, the speaker time will stop and will resume when the speaker 
resumes speaking; C) Time yielded, in order to yield extra time to the current 
speaker, attendees speaking shall state the name of the person yielding their time 
prior to speaking, each person yielding time must be on the zoom as an attendee at 
the time, time is yielded; D) The designated meeting host shall keep track of a list 
and record attendees requesting to speak in the order when they raised their hands 
for public comment. The list shall be presented on screen publicly that shows who 
raised their hand to speak on Zoom, how they were chosen and in what order; E) 
Notify speakers they have exceeded their time, and allow to complete their sentence 
and state you are moving on to the next speaker, prior to cutting the speaker off; F) 
Allow chat and reactions capabilities for attendees and participants; G) The chat 
should be saved and part of the public record. 
2. Designate a third party community organization to host and manage the meeting 
with neutrality.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120 

  
Items for Future Agendas 

 Discussion of items to be added to future agendas 

 
Adjournment – Next Meeting Monday, November 16, 2020 

 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 
Additional items may be added to the draft agenda per Council Rules of 
Procedure. 
Rules of Procedure as adopted by Council resolution, Article III, C3c - Agenda - Submission of Time Critical 
Items 

Time Critical Items.  A Time Critical item is defined as a matter that is considered urgent by the sponsor 
and that has a deadline for action that is prior to the next meeting of the Council and for which a report 
prepared by the City Manager, Auditor, Mayor or council member is received by the City Clerk after 
established deadlines and is not included on the Agenda Committee’s published agenda.   

4



 

 
Monday, November 2, 2020 AGENDA Page 5 

 If the Agenda Committee finds the matter to meet the definition of Time Critical, the Agenda Committee 
may place the matter on the Agenda on either the Consent or Action Calendar.  

The City Clerk shall not accept any item past the adjournment of the Agenda Committee meeting for which 
the agenda that the item is requested to appear on has been approved. 

Written communications addressed to the Agenda Committee and submitted to the City Clerk Department 
by 5:00 p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting, will be distributed to the Committee prior to the 
meeting.   

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953 and 
applicable Executive Orders as issued by the Governor that are currently in effect.  Members of the City 
Council who are not members of the standing committee may attend a standing committee meeting even 
if it results in a quorum being present, provided that the non-members only act as observers and do not 
participate in the meeting. If only one member of the Council who is not a member of the committee is 
present for the meeting, the member may participate in the meeting because less than a quorum of the 
full Council is present. Any member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this 
matter may be addressed to Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. 
 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including 
auxiliary aids or services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 
(V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) at least three business days before the meeting date.  

* * * 
I hereby certify that the agenda for this special meeting of the Berkeley City Council was posted at the 
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin Luther King 
Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on October 29, 2020. 

 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk 
 
 
Communications 
Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at 
2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA. 

5



6



 
Monday, October 26, 2020 MINUTES Page 1 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA & RULES COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 26, 2020 
2:30 P.M. 

Committee Members:  
Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Sophie Hahn and Susan Wengraf 

Alternate: Councilmember Ben Bartlett 
 

PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  
 
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 
2020, this meeting of the City Council Agenda & Rules Committee will be conducted exclusively 
through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  Please be advised that pursuant to the 
Executive Order, and to ensure the health and safety of the public by limiting human contact that 
could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting location available.   
 
To access the meeting remotely using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android 
device: Use URL https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83948920765.  If you do not wish for your name to 
appear on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to 
be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon on the screen. 
 
To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and Enter Meeting ID: 839 
4892 0765.  If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, press *9 
and wait to be recognized by the Chair.  
 
Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Agenda & Rules Committee by 5:00 
p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed to the members of the Committee 
in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official record.  City offices are currently 
closed and cannot accept written communications in person. 
 

 

  

7

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83948920765
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
01



 
Monday, October 26, 2020 MINUTES Page 2 

 
Roll Call: 2:31 p.m. All present. 

Public Comment – 2 speakers 
 
Review of Agendas 

1. Approval of Minutes: October 13, 2020 
Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Hahn) to approve the minutes of 10/13/20. 

 Vote: All Ayes. 

2. Review and Approve Draft Agenda: 
a. 11/10/20 – 6:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting 
Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Hahn) to approve the agenda of 11/10/20 with the 
changes noted below. 

 Item Added: Wildcat Canyon (Wengraf) – added 11/10 Consent Calendar 
 Item Added: Security Cameras (Kesarwani) – added 11/10 Consent Calendar 
 Item Added: Gun Buy Back (Kesarwani) – added 11/10 Consent Calendar 
 Item Added: Reserve Allocation (Hahn) – referred to Budget & Finance Committee 
 Item 8 Holiday Fund (Arreguin) – Councilmember Davila added as a co-sponsor 
 Item 11 Senior Apartments (City Manager) – moved to Consent Calendar 
 Item 13 Stop Signs (Arreguin) – moved to Consent Calendar 
 Item 14 Zoom Meetings (Davila) – referred to Agenda & Rules Committee 
 Item 15 Fire Safety (Wengraf) – moved to Consent Calendar 

Vote: All Ayes. 

 
Order of Items on the Action Calendar 
Presentation: Report on Homeless Outreach during COVID 19 Pandemic 
Item 12 Surveillance Technology 
Support Community Refrigerators 
Vote of No Confidence in Police Chief 

  

3. Selection of Item for the Berkeley Considers Online Engagement Portal 
- None selected 

4. Adjournments In Memory 
- None 

 

Scheduling 

5. Council Worksessions Schedule – received and filed 

6. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee for Scheduling 
Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to schedule the item regarding the Police 
Chief for the last item on the 11/10 Action Calendar. 

 Vote: All Ayes. 

8



 
Monday, October 26, 2020 MINUTES Page 3 

 

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to schedule the item regarding Community 
Refrigerators for the next to last item on the 11/10 Action Calendar. 

 Vote: All Ayes. 
 

7. Land Use Calendar – amendments noted and revised for next meeting 
 

Referred Items for Review 

8. Discussion Regarding Impact of COVID-19 (novel coronavirus) on 
Meetings of Legislative Bodies 

  
Action: 2 speakers. The Committee requested information regarding the ability 
and feasibility of allowing commission subcommittees to resume meeting.  The 
Committee also requested information on the ability of certain commissions to 
meet more regularly if they do not have staffing impacts that affect the city’s 
response to COVID-19. 

 

 

  

9



Unscheduled Items 

 
Monday, October 26, 2020 MINUTES Page 4 

 These items are not scheduled for discussion or action at this meeting.  The Committee may schedule 
these items to the Action Calendar of a future Committee meeting. 

9. Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery 
From: Councilmember Droste (Author), Councilmember Robinson (Co-
Sponsor), Councilmember Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor) 
Referred: June 15, 2020 
Due: November 30, 2020 
Recommendation: 1. Reorganize existing commissions with the goal of 
achieving 20 total commissions; 2. Reorganize existing commissions within 
various departments to ensure that no single department is responsible for more 
than five commissions; 3. Reorganize commissions within the Public Works 
Department to ensure Public Works oversees no more than three commissions; 
4. Refer to the City Manager and every policy committee to agendize at the next 
meeting available to discuss commissions that are in their purview and make 
recommendations to the full Council on how to reorganize and address the 
various policy areas. Commission members should be notified and chairs should 
be invited to participate. Policy committee members are encouraged to consider 
the renaming of some commissions in order to ensure that all policy areas are 
addressed.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lori Droste, Councilmember, District 8, (510) 981-7180 

           Action: Continued to next meeting on Unscheduled calendar. 

10.    Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to prohibit Officeholder 
Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12 (Item contains supplemental material) 
From: Fair Campaign Practices Commission 
Referred: July 28, 2020 
Due: January 29, 2021 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt first 
reading of an ordinance amending the Berkeley Election Reform Act, Berkeley 
Municipal Code Chapter 2.12, to prohibit Officeholder Accounts (See Section 
18531.62. Elected State Officeholder Bank Accounts, Regulations of the Fair 
Political Practices Commission).   
Financial Implications: None 

          Contact: Sam Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 
          Action: Continued to next meeting on Unscheduled calendar. 

 

 

 

 

 

10



Unscheduled Items 

 
Monday, October 26, 2020 MINUTES Page 5 

 

11.     Relinquishments and grants from Councilmembers’ office budgets 
From: Open Government Commission 
Referred: August 31, 2020 
Due: February 15, 2021 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution creating a temporary advisory committee 
consisting of three (3) members each of the City Council and the Open 
Government Commission (“OGC”) to enable discussion between the Council and 
the OGC to make recommendations governing relinquishments and grants from 
Councilmembers’ office budgets.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Sam Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 

          Action: Continued to next meeting on Unscheduled calendar. 

  
Items for Future Agendas 

 None

 
Adjournment  

Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Hahn) to adjourn the meeting. 
 Vote: All Ayes. 
 

  Adjourned at 3:38 p.m. 

 
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the Agenda & Rules 
Committee meeting held on October 26, 2020. 
 
_____________________ 
Mark Numainville 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
Communications 
Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at 
2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA. 

11



12



 

Tuesday, November 17, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 1 

D R AF T  AG E N D A  

 
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Tuesday, November 17, 2020 
6:00 PM 

 

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR 
Councilmembers: 

DISTRICT 1 – RASHI KESARWANI  DISTRICT 5 – SOPHIE HAHN 
DISTRICT 2 – CHERYL DAVILA  DISTRICT 6 – SUSAN WENGRAF 
DISTRICT 3 – BEN BARTLETT  DISTRICT 7 – RIGEL ROBINSON 
DISTRICT 4 – KATE HARRISON  DISTRICT 8 – LORI DROSTE 

 
PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this meeting 
of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  Please be 
advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order, and to ensure the health and safety 
of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting 
location available.   
 
Live audio is available on KPFB Radio 89.3. Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on 
Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet accessible video stream at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx. 
 
To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device:  Please use this URL 
<<INSERT URL HERE>>.  If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the drop down 
menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous.  To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon 
by rolling over the bottom of the screen.  
 
To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: <<INSERT 
MEETING ID HERE>>. If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and 
wait to be recognized by the Chair.  
 
To submit an e-mail comment during the meeting to be read aloud during public comment, email 
clerk@cityofberkeley.info with the Subject Line in this format: “PUBLIC COMMENT ITEM ##.” Please observe a 
150 word limit. Time limits on public comments will apply. Written comments will be entered into the public record.   
 
Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules 
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference. 
 
This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.  Any 
member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark 
Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the 
Agenda. Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time 
to be specified. 

13

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
mailto:clerk@cityofberkeley.info
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a



 

Tuesday, November 17, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 2 

Preliminary Matters 

Roll Call:  

Ceremonial Matters: In addition to those items listed on the agenda, the Mayor may add additional 
ceremonial matters. 

City Manager Comments:  The City Manager may make announcements or provide information to 
the City Council in the form of an oral report.  The Council will not take action on such items but may 
request the City Manager place a report on a future agenda for discussion. 

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: Persons will be selected to address matters not on 
the Council agenda.  If five or fewer persons wish to speak, each person selected will be allotted two 
minutes each.  If more than five persons wish to speak, up to ten persons will be selected to address 
matters not on the Council agenda and each person selected will be allotted one minute each. The 
remainder of the speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda items will be heard at the end 
of the agenda. 

 
Consent Calendar 
 The Council will first determine whether to move items on the agenda for “Action” or “Information” to the 

“Consent Calendar”, or move “Consent Calendar” items to “Action.” Three members of the City Council 
must agree to pull an item from the Consent Calendar for it to move to Action. Items that remain on the 
“Consent Calendar” are voted on in one motion as a group. “Information” items are not discussed or acted 
upon at the Council meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent”. 

No additional items can be moved onto the Consent Calendar once public comment has commenced. At 
any time during, or immediately after, public comment on Information and Consent items, any 
Councilmember may move any Information or Consent item to “Action.” Following this, the Council will 
vote on the items remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion.  

For items moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons 
who spoke on the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time 
the matter is taken up during the Action Calendar. 

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: The Council will 
take public comment on any items that are either on the amended Consent Calendar or the Information 
Calendar.  Speakers will be entitled to two minutes each to speak in opposition to or support of Consent 
Calendar and Information Items.  A speaker may only speak once during the period for public comment 
on Consent Calendar and Information items. 

Additional information regarding public comment by City of Berkeley employees and interns: Employees 
and interns of the City of Berkeley, although not required, are encouraged to identify themselves as such, 
the department in which they work and state whether they are speaking as an individual or in their official 
capacity when addressing the Council in open session or workshops. 
 

 
 

14



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, November 17, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 3 

1. 
 

Amendment: FY 2021 Annual Appropriations Ordinance 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance amending FY 2021 Annual 
Appropriations Ordinance No. 7,724 - N.S. for fiscal year 2021 based upon 
recommended re-appropriation of committed FY 2020 funding and other adjustments 
since July 1, 2020 in the amount of $184,267,388 (gross) and $179,848,051 (net).  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Teresa Berkeley-Simmons, Budget Manager, (510) 981-7000 

 

2. 
 

Resolution Reviewing and Ratifying the Proclamation of Local Emergency Due 
to the Spread of a Severe Acute Respiratory Illness Cause by a Novel (New) 
Coronavirus (COVID-19) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution reviewing the need for continuing the local 
emergency due to the spread of a severe acute respiratory illness caused by a novel 
(new) coronavirus (COVID-19) and ratifying the Proclamation of Local Emergency 
issued by the Director of Emergency Services on March 3, 2020, initially ratified by 
the City Council on March 10, 2020, and subsequently reviewed and ratified by the 
Council on April 21, 2020, June 16, 2020, July 28, 2020 and September 22, 2020.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Farimah Brown, City Attorney, (510) 981-6950 

 

3. 
 

Minutes for Approval 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Approve the minutes for the council meetings of October 1, 2020 
(closed), October 6, 2020 (closed), October 8, 2020 (closed), October 13, 2020 
(special and regular),  October 20, 2020 (closed and special), and October 27, 2020 
(closed and regular).  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900 

 

4. 
 

Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible 
Issuance After Council Approval on November 17, 2020 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached 
to staff report) that will be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the 
requesting department or division.  All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold 
will be returned to Council for final approval.  
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $7,429,349 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

15



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, November 17, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 4 

5. 
 

Revenue Contract: The Center at Sierra Health Foundation for $100,000 for 
Information Technology Equipment, Telehealth Licenses, and Personal 
Protective Equipment 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to apply for funding provided by The California Department of Health Care 
Services through the Behavioral Health Telehealth Request for Applications and 
accept the funding and execute any resultant revenue agreements and amendments 
to purchase Information Technology equipment, Telehealth licenses, and Personal 
Protective Equipment up to $100,000 total in fiscal year 2021 and fiscal year 2022.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 

6. 
 

Contract No. 32100021 Amendment: Telfords for Tyler Munis ERP System 
(locally referred to as ERMA) Implementation Support 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend 
Contract No. 32100021 with Telfords, for Consulting Services for Tyler Munis ERP 
system project management and implementation support services and to increase 
the contract amount by $50,000 for a total not to exceed $100,000 and to extend the 
contract through June 30, 2021.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800 

 

7. 
 

Refer to the Planning Commission to Amend the General Plan Land Use 
Classification and Rezone Parcels Located at 1709 Alcatraz Street, 3404 King 
Street, 3244 Ellis Street, 1717 Alcatraz Avenue and 2024 Ashby Avenue 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Refer to the Planning Commission consideration that the parcels 
located at 1709 Alcatraz Street (APN 052-1533-001-03), 3404 King Street (APN 052-
1435-001-02), 3244 Ellis Street (APN 052-1533-005-00), 1717 Alcatraz Avenue 
(APN 052-1533-005-00) and 2024 Ashby Avenue (APN 053-1592-022-00) be 
reclassified to the new Adeline Corridor Mixed Use General Plan Land Use 
Classification; and consideration that the same areas be rezoned to the new 
Commercial – Adeline Corridor District.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

 

16



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, November 17, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 5 

8. 
 

Contract No. 103266-1 Amendment: Karste Consulting, Inc. for Emergency 
Preparedness Services and Training 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
amendment to Contract No. 103266-1 (Contract No. 9786C in FUND$) with Karste 
Consulting, Inc. to increase the amount by $100,000 for a total amount not to exceed 
$350,000 and to extend the term through December 31, 2022. 
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $100,000 
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

9. 
 

Contract No. 108747-1 Amendment: Acumen Industrial Hygiene for Industrial 
Hygiene Services 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
amendment to Contract No. 108747-1 (Contract No. 10203A in FUND$) with 
Acumen Industrial Hygiene for industrial hygiene services, increasing the amount by 
$100,000 for a new total contract amount not to exceed $250,000 and extending the 
contract through June 30, 2022.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

10. 
 

Contract No. 108007-1 Amendment: Don’s Tire Service, Inc. for Tire Repair 
Services for City Fleet Vehicles 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
amendment to Contract No. 108007-1 (Contract No. 10140 in FUND$) with Don’s 
Tire Services, Inc. for repair and replacement services for automobile and truck tires 
for City of Berkeley fleet vehicles for an additional $123,534, for a new total not to 
exceed $273,534, and extend the authorized term through June 30, 2021.  
Financial Implications: Equipment Maintenance Fund - $123,534 
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

11. 
 

Purchase Order: Bruce’s Tire, Inc. for New Automobile and Truck Tires for City 
Fleet Vehicles 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to increase the 
available spending with Bruce’s Tire Inc. for the purchase of automobile and truck 
tires for City of Berkeley fleet vehicles for an additional $317,563, for a new total not 
to exceed $1,192,563, and extend the authorized term through June 30, 2021.  
Financial Implications: Equipment Maintenance Fund - $317,563 
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

17



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, November 17, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 6 

12. 
 

Annual Report on Gifts Received in Excess of $1,000 Aggregate Value 
From: Board of Library Trustees 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting the Library’s annual gift report to 
the Berkeley City Council as presented and recommended by the Board of Library 
Trustees.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Tess Mayer, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6100 

 

Action Calendar 
 The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. For items 

moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons who spoke on 
the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time the matter is 
taken up during the Action Calendar. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak line up at the podium to determine the 
number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes. 
If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public 
comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other 
speaker, however no one speaker shall have more than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may, with the 
consent of persons representing both sides of an issue, allocate a block of time to each side to present 
their issue. 

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council. 
 

Action Calendar – Public Hearings 
 Staff shall introduce the public hearing item and present their comments. This is followed by five-minute 

presentations each by the appellant and applicant. The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing 
to speak, line up at the podium to be recognized and to determine the number of persons interested in 
speaking at that time. 

Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in 
speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. 
Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more 
than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may with the consent of persons representing both sides of an 
issue allocate a block of time to each side to present their issue. 

Each member of the City Council shall verbally disclose all ex parte contacts concerning the subject of the 
hearing. Councilmembers shall also submit a report of such contacts in writing prior to the commencement 
of the hearing. Written reports shall be available for public review in the office of the City Clerk. 
 

13. 
 

Renewal of the Elmwood Avenue BID for Calendar Year 2021 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and, upon conclusion, adopt a 
Resolution confirming the Annual Report and Budget for the Elmwood Business 
Improvement District (hereafter, “the District”, “the Elmwood BID” or “the BID”) for 
2020-21 and, if no majority protest exists, levy annual assessments in the District for 
calendar year 2021 to finance services and improvements and authorize a fiscal 
agency contract with Elmwood Business Association for receipt and expenditure of 
District funds.  
Financial Implications: See Report 
Contact: Eleanor Hollander, Economic Development, (510) 981-7530 

 

18



Action Calendar – Public Hearings 

Tuesday, November 17, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 7 

14. 
 

Renewal of the Solano Avenue BID for Calendar Year 2021 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and, upon conclusion, adopt a 
Resolution confirming the Annual Report and Budget for the Solano Avenue 
Business Improvement District (hereafter, “Solano BID Advisory Board” or “the BID”) 
for 2020-2021 and, if no majority protest exists, levy annual assessments in the 
District for calendar year 2021 to finance services and improvements and authorize a 
fiscal agency contract for receipt and expenditure of District funds.  
Financial Implications: See Report 
Contact: Eleanor Hollander, Economic Development, (510) 981-7530 

 

15. 
 

Closure of the crossing at Camelia Street/Union Pacific (UP) Railroad Corridor; 
Amending Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 14.24 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt first 
reading of an Ordinance amending Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 14.24, to close 
the existing Union Pacific (UP) railroad crossing at Camelia Street to all traffic.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

16. 
 

General Plan Amendment: Vehicle Miles Traveled for Transportation Impact 
Analysis under the California Environmental Quality Act 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt a 
Resolution approving a General Plan amendment that replaces Level of Service 
(LOS) with Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) as the criteria used to determine 
transportation-related environmental impacts under the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA). This update is required by Senate Bill (SB) 743. Findings for the 
General Plan amendment are included in the report.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

 

17. 
 

Referral Response: Zoning Ordinance Amendments that Reform Residential 
Off-Street Parking; Amending Berkeley Municipal Code Title 14 and Title 23 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion select among 
proposed ordinance language options and take the following action: 
Adopt first reading of an Ordinance amending Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Title 
14 and Title 23 which would:  
1. Modify Minimum Residential Off-street Parking Requirements 
2. Impose Residential Parking Maximums in Transit-rich Areas 
3. Amend the Residential Preferential Parking (RPP) Permit Program  
4. Institute Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Requirements  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

 

19



Action Calendar – Policy Committee Track Items 

Tuesday, November 17, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 8 

18. 
 

Contract: Youth Listen Campaign with Voices Against Violence, A Program of 
the McGee Center for Food, Faith & Justice 
From: Councilmember Davila (Author) 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
contract and any amendments for the Youth Listen Campaign with Voices Against 
Violence: A Program of the McGee Center for Food, Faith & Justice, for the period 
October 15, 2020 through June 15, 2021, for an amount not to exceed $50,000.  
Financial Implications: $50,000 
Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120 

 

19. 
 

Navigable Cities Framework for Ensuring Access and Freedom-of-Movement 
for People with Disabilities in Berkeley 
From: Councilmember Hahn (Author), Councilmember Robinson (Co-Sponsor), 
Councilmember Bartlett (Co-Sponsor) 
Recommendation:  
1. Refer to the City Manager to incorporate relevant elements of the Navigable Cities 
Framework for Ensuring Access and Freedom-of-Movement for People with 
Disabilities in Berkeley, submitted to the City Council by the Commission on 
Disability, into the Berkeley Pedestrian Master Plan currently being updated, and any 
other planning processes for which the report would provide relevant information. 
2. Refer to the Public Works and Parks and Waterfront Commissions to return to 
Council reports on ways that elements of the Navigable Cities Framework can be 
incorporated into the work, projects, contracts, and policies of the Public Works and 
the Parks, Recreation & Waterfront Departments.  
Financial Implications: Staff time 
Contact: Sophie Hahn, Councilmember, District 5, (510) 981-7150 

 

Information Reports 
 

20. 
 

FY 2020 Year-End/FY 2021 1st Quarter Report 
From: City Manager 
Contact: Teresa Berkeley-Simmons, Budget Manager, (510) 981-7000 

 

Public Comment – Items Not Listed on the Agenda 

Adjournment 
NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to 
approve or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:  
1) No lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code 
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of 
Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be 
barred.  2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use 
permit or variance, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally 
or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project. 
 

20



 

Tuesday, November 17, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 9 

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33),  
via internet accessible video stream at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx 

and KPFB Radio 89.3. 
 

Archived indexed video streams are available at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil. 
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m. 
 

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic 
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, 
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication 
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or 
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact information included in 
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the City 
Clerk Department for further information. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 
will be posted on the City's website at http://www.cityofberkeley.info. 

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil 

 
COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) 
at least three business days before the meeting date. 
 

 
Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet. 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 

21

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil


22



Office of the City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@ci.berkeley.ca.us  Website: http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
November 17, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Board of Library Trustees

Submitted by: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services, Acting as Secretary, Board of 
Library Trustees

Subject: Annual Report on Gifts Received in Excess of $1,000 Aggregate Value

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution accepting the Library’s annual gift report to the Berkeley City 
Council as presented and recommended by the Board of Library Trustees.

FISCAL IMPACT OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
The Board of Library Trustees accepts gifts throughout the fiscal year; for the period 
July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 the following gifts equal to or in excess of the 
$1,000 aggregate were received and accepted into Library Fund accounts: the Friends 
of the Berkeley Public Library for $120,000, and the Berkeley Public Library Foundation 
for $19,079.

Donor funds are kept separate and apart from other funds and are managed as part of 
the regular budget management process per the Library’s Gift / Donation Policy A.R. 
Number 10.11.

BACKGROUND
The Council has delegated the responsibility of acceptance and appropriation of Library 
gift funds to the Board of Library Trustees, such that the Library will be better able to 
honor the intent and wishes of the grantor/donor and fulfill identified community needs in 
a timely manner.  The Council’s delegation of authority to the Board of Library Trustees 
ensures that public noticing of gifts occurs on a regular basis and annual reporting 
ensures that the Council remains well-informed regarding gifts to the Library.

On September 20, 2011 the Council approved Resolution No. 65,444-N.S., “Mandating 
annual reporting from the Board of Library Trustees of gifts in excess of $1,000 in 
aggregate in an informational report to be presented before the Council on a regular 

Page 1 of 3

23

mailto:manager@ci.berkeley.ca.us
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.12



meeting agenda.”  Information relevant to the report was prepared by staff for Board of 
Library Trustee consideration and approved for communication to the City Council.  The 
submitted report will fulfill the ordinance’s obligation covering the period from July 1, 
2019 through June 30, 2020.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The approval of this recommendation will satisfy the intent of the Council Resolution 
regarding acceptance of gift funds. In addition, the Board of Library Trustees has 
reviewed and recommends the report for acceptance. This action will have no negative 
implications and honors the original intent of the donor parties.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
No other alternative actions were considered.

CONTACT PERSON
Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services, 981-6195

Attachment:
1. Resolution

Page 2 of 3

24



RESOLUTION NO.: ##,### N.S.
ANNUAL REPORT TO COUNCIL FROM THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES ON 

GIFTS RECEIVED IN EXCESS OF $1,000 AGGREGATE

WHEREAS, the Berkeley Public Library regularly receives gifts from two support 
organizations, the Berkeley Public Library Foundation and the Friends of the Berkeley 
Public Library, as well as many individuals and groups; and

WHEREAS, the Open Government Ordinance, pursuant to section 2.06.150, stipulates 
that, “Contributions to the City or any of its functionaries or Legislative Bodies, for the 
purpose of carrying out or assisting any City function, shall be disclosed and approved 
on the Agenda of a regular Meeting of the City Council”; and

WHEREAS, the City Council at a regular meeting on September 20, 2011 approved on 
the consent calendar Resolution No. 65,444-N.S., which delegated to the Library Board 
of Trustees the authority to accept any gifts of funds, goods, or services made to the 
Library up to $200,000 that do not include unduly restrictive conditions on their use, and 
all gifts from the Library Foundation constituting payments toward the Foundation’s 
Branch Library FF&E Campaign and included a requirement that the Board of Library 
Trustees report to Council annually gifts in excess of $1,000 in aggregate; and

WHEREAS, the submitted covers the period from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, 
corresponding  with the fiscal year calendar; and

WHEREAS, gifts to the Library subject to reporting to the City Council during this period 
are: the Friends of the Berkeley Public Library for $120,000, and the Berkeley Public 
Library Foundation for $19,079; and

WHERAS, on October 14, 2020 at a special meeting of the Board, by Resolution 20-057 
the board voted to approve the annual gift report to Council as presented.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley hereby 
accepts the annual report of gifts in excess of $1,000 in aggregate from the Board of 
Library Trustees.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following gifts to the Library are hereby 
approved:

1. The Friends of the Berkeley Public Library for $120,000; and
2. The Berkeley Public Library Foundation for $19,079.

Page 3 of 3

25



26



Cheryl Davila
Councilmember 
District 2  

CONSENT CALENDAR
November 17, 2020

To:   Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From:   Councilmember Cheryl Davila 

Subject: Contract: Youth Listen Campaign with Voices Against Violence, A Program of the 
   McGee Center for Food, Faith & Justice

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract and any amendments 
for the Youth Listen Campaign with Voices Against Violence: A Program of the McGee Center 
for Food, Faith & Justice, for the period October 15, 2020 through June 15, 2021, for an 
amount not to exceed $50,000.
 
BACKGROUND
Over the past several years, incidents of gun violence in South Berkeley have risen. The 
targets, shooters and victims have been African-American. Additionally, gun violence has 
occurred during the middle of the day, exposing toddlers, children, youth and adults who are 
out in their neighborhoods or sleeping in their beds to the terror of active shootings. Despite 
these repeated incidents, the City currently has no gun violence prevention or intervention 
mentoring program to address the immediate need to curtail the violence and take the 
necessary preventive steps toward healing and change within the community beyond police 
investigation.

In August of 2019, with limited funding from the University of California Chancellor’s 
Community Partnership Grant, along with a gift from a local family foundation and funding from 
the Center for Food, Faith & Justice Health and Garden, the Voices Against Violence Program 
was launched. In its first year, the program served 27 Berkeley Middle and High School 
Students through weekly after-school sessions with 31 families registered for the program. 
Youth participated in workshops ranging from violence prevention, identity formation, diversity 
training, racial justice, art expression, urban gardening and healthy living. Participants were 
eligible to receive merit-based stipends for attendance, participation and community service 
projects. 

In addition, Voices Against Violence staff recognized that many of our youth arrive hungry with 
limited or no resources for food which led the program to also include a weekly meal. In mid-
March of 2020 the impact of COVID-19 required the program to temporarily shut down. By May 
2020, program staff realized that the Pandemic would not end anytime soon and they began 
re-thinking our strategies to create a program model while the program continued to shelter in 

Page 1 of 25

27

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.18



place and still maintain contact with our young people engaging through social distancing as 
well as video and online technology.

Despite the ongoing challenges of Sheltering in Place, Voices Against Violence recognizes the 
recent events leading to the Black Lives Matter Uprising for justice and equity means that the 
population that the program serves is as vulnerable as ever. As Berkeley seeks to re-imagine 
strategies for community safety, Voices Against Violence is one of the few Black led Berkeley-
based programs already working in this area with limited funding and resources from the City of 
Berkeley. As such, Voices Against Violence seek direct and ongoing funding from the City 
through the proposed Youth Listen Campaign to support and expand our efforts to continue 
and serve some of Berkeley’s most vulnerable youth and families.

While the number of young people caught up in gun violence is relatively small, their impact is 
large. With a small investment of resources, Voices Against Violence - A Program of the 
McGee Center for Food, Faith & Justice, can engage the highest risk young people in stopping 
gun violence while getting on a path to positive alternatives. Surrounding this small group of 
highest risk young people are a larger circle of young people who get caught up in the violence 
or become collateral damage. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
$50,000 was allocated in the Mayor’s budget to conduct the Youth Listen Campaign, Voices 
Against Violence would like to include this as part of their program.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
Protecting our communities during this climate and health crisis is an act of environmental 
sustainability.

CONTACT PERSONS
Cheryl Davila
Councilmember District 2                                                                                      
510.981.7120
cdavila@cityofberkeley.info

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution 
2. Contract
3. Program Background, Overview, Objectives and Timeline

Page 2 of 25

28

mailto:cdavila@cityofberkeley.info


RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CONTRACT: VOICES AGAINST VIOLENCE - A PROGRAM OF THE MCGEE CENTER FOR 
FOOD, FAITH, & JUSTICE - FOR THE YOUTH LISTEN CAMPAIGN

WHEREAs, Over the past several years, incidents of gun violence in South Berkeley have 
risen. The targets, shooters and victims have been African-American. Additionally, gun 
violence has occurred during the middle of the day, exposing toddlers, children, youth and 
adults who are out in their neighborhoods or sleeping in their beds to the terror of active 
shootings. Despite these repeated incidents, the City currently has no gun violence prevention 
or intervention mentoring program to address the immediate need to curtail the violence and 
take the necessary preventive steps toward healing and change within the community beyond 
police investigation; and

WHEREAS, In August of 2019, with limited funding from the University of California 
Chancellor’s Community Partnership Grant, along with a gift from a local family foundation and 
funding from the Center for Food, Faith & Justice Health and Garden, the Voices Against 
Violence Program was launched. In its first year, the program served 27 Berkeley Middle and 
High School Students through weekly after-school sessions with 31 families registered for the 
program. Youth participated in workshops ranging from violence prevention, identity formation, 
diversity training, racial justice, art expression, urban gardening and healthy living. Participants 
were eligible to receive merit-based stipends for attendance, participation and community 
service projects; and 

WHEREAS, In addition, Voices Against Violence staff recognized that many of our youth arrive 
hungry with limited or no resources for food which led the program to also include a weekly 
meal. In mid-March of 2020 the impact of COVID-19 required the program to temporarily shut 
down. By May 2020, program staff realized that the Pandemic would not end anytime soon and 
they began re-thinking our strategies to create a program model while the program continued 
to shelter in place and still maintain contact with our young people engaging through social 
distancing as well as video and online technology; and

WHEREAS, Despite the ongoing challenges of Sheltering in Place, Voices Against Violence 
recognizes the recent events leading to the Black Lives Matter Uprising for justice and equity 
means that the population that the program serves is as vulnerable as ever. As Berkeley seeks 
to re-imagine strategies for community safety, Voices Against Violence is one of the few Black 
led Berkeley-based programs already working in this area with limited funding and resources 
from the City of Berkeley. As such, Voices Against Violence seek direct and ongoing funding 
from the City through the proposed Youth Listen Campaign to support and expand our efforts 
to continue and serve some of Berkeley’s most vulnerable youth and families; and

WHEREAS, While the number of young people caught up in gun violence is relatively small, 
their impact is large. With a small investment of resources, Voices Against Violence - A 
Program of the McGee Center for Food, Faith & Justice, can engage the highest risk young 
people in stopping gun violence while getting on a path to positive alternatives. Surrounding 
this small group of highest risk young people are a larger circle of young people who get 
caught up in the violence or become collateral damage. 

Page 3 of 25

29



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the City 
Manager is authorized to execute a contract and any amendments for the Youth Listen 
Campaign with Voices Against Violence: A Program of the McGee Center for Food, Faith & 
Justice, for the period October 15, 2020 through June 15, 2021, for an amount not to exceed 
$50,000. 

Page 4 of 25

30



PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

THIS CONTRACT is between the CITY OF BERKELEY (“City”), a Charter City 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, and Rev. Michael 

Smith(“Contractor”), a Pastor and Executive Director doing business at McGee Avenue Baptist 

Church Center for Food, Faith, and Justice who agree as follows: 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 Contractor agrees to perform all services described in Exhibit A, in accordance 

with its stated terms and conditions. Exhibit A is attached to and made a part of this Contract. 

2. PAYMENT 

For services referred to in Section 1, City will pay Contractor a total amount not 

to exceed $__50,000_______________. City shall make payments to Contractor in accordance 

with the provisions described in Exhibit B, which is attached to and made a part of this Contract. 

3. TERM 

a.  This Contract shall begin on ________________October 15, 2020 and end on 

________________ June 15, 2021. The City Manager of the City may extend the term of this 

Contract by giving  

written notice. 

b.  Either party may terminate this Contract for default upon five (5) days’ written 

notice to the other if the other party has substantially failed to fulfill any of its obligations under 

this Contract in a timely manner. City may terminate this Contract at its convenience and without 

cause upon thirty (30) days written notice to Contractor. Except as provided in this Contract, in 

no event shall City be liable for costs incurred by or on behalf of Contractor after the effective 

date of a notice of termination. 

c.  A written notice is deemed served when a party sends the notice in an envelope 

addressed to the other party to this Contract and deposits it with the U.S. Postal Service, first 

class mail, postage prepaid. For purposes of this Contract, all notices to City shall be addressed 

as follows: 

City Manager 

City of Berkeley 

2180 Milvia Street 

Berkeley, California 94704 

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 5 of 25

31



For purposes of this Contract, all notices to Contractor shall be addressed as follows: 

Rev. Michael Smith, Executive Director 

McGee Avenue Baptist Church, 

Center for Food, Faith and Justice (CFFJ) 

1640 Stuart St. 

Berkeley, CA 94703] 

d.  If City terminates this Contract for convenience before Contractor completes 

the services in Exhibit A, Contractor shall then be entitled to recover its costs expended up to that 

point plus a reasonable profit, but no other loss, cost, damage, expense or liability may be 

claimed, requested or recovered. 

4. INDEMNIFICATION  

Contractor, for itself and its heirs, successors and assigns, agrees to release, 

defend, indemnify and hold harmless City, its officers, agents, volunteers and employees from 

and against any and all claims, demands, liability, damages, lawsuits or other actions, including, 

but not limited to, personal injury or death or property damage arising out of or in any way 

connected with Contractor’s operations under this Contract, or with the performance of this 

Contract by Contractor or its officers, employees, partners, directors, subcontractors or agents. 

5. INSURANCE 

a.  Contractor shall maintain at all times during the performance of this Contract a 

commercial general liability insurance policy with a minimum occurrence coverage in the 

amount of $2,000,000 (two million dollars); an automobile liability insurance policy in the 

minimum amount of $1,000,000 (one million dollars); and, if any licensed professional performs 

services under this contract, a professional liability insurance policy in the minimum amount of 

$________________ to cover any claims arising out of Contractor’s performance of services 

under this Contract. All insurance, except professional liability, shall name the City, its officers, 

agents, volunteers and employees as additional insureds and shall provide primary coverage with 

respect to the City. 

All insurance policies shall: 1) provide that the insurance carrier shall not cancel, 

terminate or otherwise modify the terms and conditions of said policies except upon thirty (30) 

days written notice to the City’s Contract Administrator; 2) be evidenced by the original 

Certificate of Insurance, specifying the required coverage and the insurance carrier’s standard 

additional insured form endorsement; and 3) be approved as to form and sufficiency by the City’s 

Contract Administrator. The original insurance certificates and all extensions to the 

insurance certificates should be sent to the address identified below. 

b.  If the commercial general liability insurance referred to above is written on a 

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 6 of 25

32



Claims Made Form then, following termination of this Contract, coverage shall survive for a 

period of not less than five years. Coverage shall also provide for a retroactive date of placement 

coinciding with the effective date of this Contract. 

c.  If Contractor employs any person, it shall carry workers’ compensation and 

employer’s liability insurance and shall provide a certificate of insurance to the City. The 

workers’ compensation insurance shall: 1) provide that the insurance carrier shall not cancel, 

terminate or otherwise modify the terms and conditions of said insurance except upon thirty (30) 

days written notice to the City’s Contract Administrator; 2) provide for a waiver of any right of 

subrogation against City to the extent permitted by law; and 3) shall be approved as to form and 

sufficiency by the Contract Administrator.  

d.  Contractor shall forward all insurance documents to: 

Department Name: ________________________________ 

Department Address: ________________________________ 

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 7 of 25

33



6. CONFORMITY WITH LAW AND SAFETY 

a.  Contractor shall observe and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, 

codes and regulations of governmental agencies, including federal, state, municipal and local 

governing bodies having jurisdiction over any or all of the scope of services, including all 

provisions of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1979 as amended, all California 

Occupational Safety and Health Regulations, and all other applicable federal, state, municipal 

and local safety regulations. All services performed by Contractor must be in accordance with 

these laws, ordinances, codes and regulations. Contractor shall release, defend, indemnify and 

hold harmless City, its officers, agents, volunteers and employees from any and all damages, 

liability, fines, penalties and consequences from any noncompliance or violation of any laws, 

ordinances, codes or regulations. 

b.  If a death, serious personal injury or substantial property damage occurs in 

connection with the performance of this Contract, Contractor shall immediately notify the City’s 

Risk Manager by telephone. If any accident occurs in connection with this Contract, Contractor 

shall promptly submit a written report to City, in such form as the City may require. This report 

shall include the following information: 1) name and address of the injured or deceased 

person(s); 2) name and address of Contractor’s subcontractor, if any; 3) name and address of 

Contractor’s liability insurance carrier; and 4) a detailed description of the accident, including 

whether any of City’s equipment, tools or materials were involved. 

c.  If a release of hazardous materials or hazardous waste that cannot be controlled 

occurs in connection with the performance of this Contract, Contractor shall immediately notify 

the Berkeley Police Department and the City’s Health Protection office. 

d.  Contractor shall not store hazardous materials or hazardous waste within the 

City of Berkeley without a proper permit from the City. 

7. SAFETY DATA SHEETS 

a.  To comply with the City’s Hazard Communication Program, Contractor agrees 

to submit Safety Data Sheets (SDS) for all “hazardous substances” Contractor intends to use in 

the performance of work under this Contract in any City facility. “Hazardous substances” are 

defined as those substances so designated by the Director of Industrial Relations pursuant to the 

Hazardous Substances Information and Training Act (Labor Code sec. 6360 et seq.). The SDS 

for all products must be submitted to the City before commencing work. The SDS for a 

particular product must be reviewed and approved by the City’s Risk Manager before Contractor 

may use that product. 

b.  City will inform Contractor about hazardous substances to which it may be 

exposed while on the job site and protective measures that can be taken to reduce the possibility 

of exposure. 

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 8 of 25

34



8. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 

a.  When this Contract is terminated, Contractor agrees to return to City all 

documents, drawings, photographs and other written or graphic material, however produced, that 

it received from City, its contractors or agents, in connection with the performance of its services 

under this Contract. All materials shall be returned in the same condition as received.  

b. Contractor grants City a royalty-free, exclusive and irrevocable license to 

reproduce, publish, use and to authorize others to do so, all original computer programs, writing, 

sound recordings, pictorial reproductions, diagrams, charts, computations, drawings and other 

works of similar nature produced in the course of the performance of this Contract. Contractor 

shall not publish any such material without the prior written agreement of the City. 

c.  With the prior written approval of City’s Project Manager, Contractor may 

retain and use copies of its work for reference and as documentation of its experience and 

capabilities. 

9. NON-DISCRIMINATION 

Contractor hereby agrees to comply with the provisions of Berkeley Municipal 

Code (“B.M.C.”) Chapter 13.26 as amended from time to time. In the performance of this 

Contract, Contractor agrees as follows: 

a.  Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment because of race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, age (over 40), sex, 

pregnancy, marital status, disability, sexual orientation or AIDS. 

b.  Contractor shall permit the City access to records of employment, employment 

advertisements, application forms, EEO-1 forms, affirmative action plans and any other 

documents which, in the opinion of the City, are necessary to monitor compliance with this non-

discrimination provision. In addition, Contractor shall fill-out, in a timely fashion, forms 

supplied by the City to monitor this non-discrimination provision. 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

a.  Contractor shall be deemed at all times to be an independent contractor and 

shall be wholly responsible for the manner in which Contractor performs the services required of 

Contractor by the terms of this Contract. Contractor shall be liable for its acts and omissions, and 

those of its employees and its agents. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as creating an 

employment, agency or partnership relationship between City and Contractor.  

b.  Direction from City regarding the subject of this Contract shall be construed as 

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 9 of 25

35



providing for direction as to policy and the result of Contractor’s Work only and not as to the 

means or methods by which such a result is obtained. 

c.  Except as expressly provided in this Contract, nothing in this Contract shall 

operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not party to this Contract. 

d.  Payment of any taxes, including California Sales and use Taxes, levied upon 

this Contract, the transaction, or the services or goods delivered pursuant hereto, shall be the 

obligation of Contractor. 

11. CONFLICT OF INTEREST PROHIBITED 

a.  In accordance with Government Code section 1090, Berkeley City Charter 

section 36 and B.M.C. Chapter 3.64, neither Contractor nor any employee, officer, director, 

partner or member of Contractor, or immediate family member of any of the preceding, shall 

have served as an elected officer, an employee, or a City board, committee or commission 

member, who has directly or indirectly influenced the making of this Contract. 

b.  In accordance with Government Code section 1090 and the Political Reform 

Act, Government Code section 87100 et seq., no person who is a director, officer, partner, 

trustee, employee or consultant of the Contractor, or immediate family member of any of the 

preceding, shall make or participate in a decision made by the City or a City board, commission 

or committee, if it is reasonably foreseeable that the decision will have a material effect on any 

source of income, investment or interest in real property of that person or Contractor. 

c.  Interpretation of this section shall be governed by the definitions and 

provisions used in the Political Reform Act, Government Code section 87100 et seq., its 

implementing regulations, manuals and codes, Government Code section 1090, Berkeley City 

Charter section 36 and B.M.C. Chapter 3.64. 

12. NUCLEAR FREE BERKELEY 

Contractor agrees to comply with B.M.C. Chapter 12.90, the Nuclear Free 

Berkeley Act, as amended from time to time. 

13. OPPRESSIVE STATES CONTRACTING PROHIBITION 

a.  In accordance with Resolution No. 59,853-N.S., Contractor certifies that it has 

no contractual relations with, and agrees during the term of this Contract to forego contractual 

relations to provide personal services to, the following entities: 

(1) The governing regime in any Oppressive State. 

(2) Any business or corporation organized under the authority of the governing 

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 10 of 25

36



regime of any Oppressive State. 

(3) Any individual, firm, partnership, corporation, association, or any other 

commercial organization, and including parent-entities and wholly-owned 

subsidiaries (to the extent that their operations are related to the purpose of 

its contract with the City), for the express purpose of assisting in business 

operations or trading with any public or private entity located in any 

Oppressive State. 

b.  For purposes of this Contract, the Tibet Autonomous Region and the provinces 

of Ado, Kham, and U-Tsang shall be deemed oppressive states.  

c.  Contractor’s failure to comply with this section shall constitute a default of this 

Contract and City may terminate this Contract pursuant to Section 3. In the event that the City 

terminates Contractor due to a default under this provision, City may deem Contractor a non-

responsible bidder for not more than five (5) years from the date this Contract is terminated. 

14. SANCTUARY CITY CONTRACTING  

   Contractor hereby agrees to comply with the provisions of the Sanctuary City 

Contracting Ordinance, B.M.C. Chapter 13.105.  In accordance with this Chapter, Contractor 

agrees not to provide the U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement Division of the United 

States Department of Homeland Security with any Data Broker or Extreme Vetting Services as 

defined herein: 

a. “Data Broker” means either of the following: 

i. The collection of information, including personal information 

about consumers, from a wide variety of sources for the purposes 

of reselling such information to their customers, which include 

both private-sector business and government agencies; 

ii. The aggregation of data that was collected for another purpose 

from that for which it is ultimately used. 

b. “Extreme Vetting” means data mining, threat modeling, predictive risk 

analysis, or other similar services.  Extreme Vetting does not include: 

i. The City’s computer-network health and performance tools; 

ii. Cybersecurity capabilities, technologies and systems used by the 

City of Berkeley Department of Information Technology to predict, 

monitor for, prevent, and protect technology infrastructure and 

systems owned and operated by the City of Berkeley from potential 

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 11 of 25

37



cybersecurity events and cyber-forensic based investigations and 

prosecutions of illegal computer based activity. 

15. RECYCLED PAPER FOR WRITTEN REPORTS 

If Contractor is required by this Contract to prepare a written report or study, 

Contractor shall use recycled paper for said report or study when such paper is available at a cost 

of not more than ten percent more than the cost of virgin paper, and when such paper is available 

at the time it is needed. For the purposes of this Contract, recycled paper is paper that contains at 

least 50% recycled product. If recycled paper is not available, Contractor shall use white paper. 

Written reports or studies prepared under this Contract shall be printed on both sides of the page 

whenever practical. 

16. BERKELEY LIVING WAGE ORDINANCE  

 a.  Contractor hereby agrees to comply with the provisions of the Berkeley Living 

Wage Ordinance, B.M.C. Chapter 13.27. If Contractor is currently subject to the Berkeley Living 

Wage Ordinance, as indicated by the Living Wage Certification form, attached hereto, Contractor 

will be required to provide all eligible employees with City mandated minimum compensation 

during the term of this Contract, as defined in B.M.C. Chapter 13.27, as well as comply with the 

terms enumerated herein. Contractor expressly acknowledges that, even if Contractor is not 

currently subject to the Living Wage Ordinance, cumulative contracts with City may subject 

Contractor to the requirements under B.M.C. Chapter 13.27 in subsequent contracts. 

 b.  If Contractor is currently subject to the Berkeley Living Wage Ordinance, 

Contractor shall be required to maintain monthly records of those employees providing service 

under the Contract. These records shall include the total number of hours worked, the number of 

hours spent providing service under this Contract, the hourly rate paid, and the amount paid by 

Contractor for health benefits, if any, for each of its employees providing services under the 

Contract. These records are expressly subject to the auditing terms described in Section 17.      

 c.  If Contractor is currently subject to the Berkeley Living Wage Ordinance, 

Contractor shall include the requirements thereof, as defined in B.M.C. Chapter 13.27, in any 

and all subcontracts in which Contractor engages to execute its responsibilities under this 

Contract. All subcontractor employees who spend 25% or more of their compensated time 

engaged in work directly related to this Contract shall be entitled to a living wage, as described 

in B.M.C. Chapter 13.27 and herein.  

 d.  If Contractor fails to comply with the requirements of this Section, the City 

shall have the rights and remedies described in this Section, in addition to any rights and 

remedies provided by law or equity.  

 Contractor’s failure to comply with this Section shall constitute a material breach 

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 12 of 25

38



of the Contract, upon which City may terminate this Contract pursuant to Section 3. In the event 

that City terminates Contractor due to a default under this provision, City may deem Contractor a 

non-responsible bidder for not more than five (5) years from the date this Contract is terminated.  

  

 In addition, at City’s sole discretion, Contractor may be responsible for liquidated 

damage in the amount of $50 per employee per day for each and every instance of an 

underpayment to an employee. It is mutually understood and agreed that Contractor’s failure to 

pay any of its eligible employees at least the applicable living wage rate will result in damages 

being sustained by the City; that the nature and amount of the damages will be extremely 

difficult and impractical to fix; that the liquidated damage set forth herein is the nearest and most 

exact measure of damage for such breach that can be fixed at this time; and that the liquidated 

damage amount is not intended as a penalty or forfeiture for Contractor’s breach. City may 

deduct any assessed liquidated damages from any payments otherwise due Contractor. 

17. BERKELEY EQUAL BENEFITS ORDINANCE 

 a.  Contractor hereby agrees to comply with the provisions of the Berkeley Equal 

Benefits Ordinance, B.M.C. Chapter 13.29. If Contractor is currently subject to the Berkeley 

Equal Benefits Ordinance, as indicated by the Equal Benefits Certification form, attached hereto, 

Contractor will be required to provide all eligible employees with City mandated equal benefits, 

as defined in B.M.C. Chapter 13.29, during the term of this contract, as well as comply with the 

terms enumerated herein.   

 b.  If Contractor is currently or becomes subject to the Berkeley Equal Benefits 

Ordinance, Contractor agrees to provide the City with all records the City deems necessary to 

determine compliance with this provision. These records are expressly subject to the auditing 

terms described in Section 17 of this contract. 

  

 c.  If Contractor fails to comply with the requirements of this Section, City shall 

have the rights and remedies described in this Section, in addition to any rights and remedies 

provided by law or equity. 

 Contractor’s failure to comply with this Section shall constitute a material breach 

of the Contract, upon which City may terminate this contract pursuant to Section 3. In the event 

the City terminates this contract due to a default by Contractor under this provision, the City may 

deem Contractor a non-responsible bidder for not more than five (5) years from the date this 

Contract is terminated. 

  

 In addition, at City’s sole discretion, Contractor may be responsible for liquidated 

damages in the amount of $50.00 per employee per day for each and every instance of violation 

of this Section. It is mutually understood and agreed that Contractor’s failure to provide its 

employees with equal benefits will result in damages being sustained by City; that the nature and 

amount of these damages will be extremely difficult and impractical to fix; that the liquidated 

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 13 of 25

39



damages set forth herein is the nearest and most exact measure of damages for such breach that 

can be fixed at this time; and that the liquidated damage amount is not intended as a penalty or 

forfeiture for Contractor’s breach. City may deduct any assessed liquidated damages from any 

payments otherwise due Contractor. 

18. AUDIT 

Pursuant to Section 61 of the Berkeley City Charter, the City Auditor’s Office 

may conduct an audit of Contractor’s financial, performance and compliance records maintained 

in connection with the operations and services performed under this Contract. In the event of 

such audit, Contractor agrees to provide the City Auditor with reasonable access to Contractor’s 

employees and make all such financial, performance and compliance records available to the 

Auditor’s Office. City agrees to provide Contractor an opportunity to discuss and respond to any 

findings before a final audit report is filed. 

19. SETOFF AGAINST DEBTS 

Contractor agrees that City may deduct from any payments due to Contractor 

under this Contract any monies that contractor owes City under any ordinance, contract or 

resolution for any unpaid taxes, fees, licenses, unpaid checks or other amounts. 

20. CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION 

Contractor understands and agrees that, in the performance of the services under 

this Contract or in the contemplation thereof, Contractor may have access to private or 

confidential information which may be owned or controlled by City and that such information 

may contain proprietary or confidential details, the disclosure of which to third parties may be 

damaging to City. Contractor agrees that all information disclosed by City to Contractor shall be 

held in confidence and used only in performance of the Contract. Contractor shall exercise the 

same standard of care to protect such information as a reasonably prudent consultant would use 

to protect its own proprietary data. 

21. PREVAILING WAGES 

  Certain labor categories under this contract may be subject to prevailing wages as 

identified in the State of California Labor Code commencing with Sections 1720 et. seq. and 

1770 et. seq.  These labor categories, when employed for any “work performed during the 

design and preconstruction phases of construction including, but not limited to, inspection and 

land surveying work,” constitute a “Public Work” within the definition of Section 1720(a)(1) of 

the California Labor Code requiring payment of prevailing wages.   In performing its 

obligations under this contract, Contractor is solely responsible to determine which, if any, of 

the work is governed by a labor category pursuant to California Labor Code sections 1720 et. 

seq. and 1770 et. seq. and pay the pertinent prevailing wage.  Contractor shall defend, 

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 14 of 25

40



indemnify and hold harmless City concerning any liability arising out of Labor Code section 

1720 et. seq. and 1770 et. seq. 

22. GOVERNING LAW 

This Contract shall be deemed to have been executed in Alameda County. The 

formation, interpretation and performance of this Contract shall be governed by the laws of the 

State of California, excluding its conflict of laws rules. Venue for all litigation relative to the 

formation, interpretation and performance of this Contract shall be in Alameda County, 

California. 

23. AMENDMENTS 

The terms and conditions of this Contract shall not be altered or otherwise 

modified except by a written amendment to this Contract executed by City and Contractor. 

24. ENTIRE CONTRACT 

a.  The terms and conditions of this Contract, all exhibits attached and any 

documents expressly incorporated by reference represent the entire Contract between the parties 

with respect to the subject matter of this Contract. This Contract shall supersede any and all prior 

contracts, oral or written, regarding the subject matter between City and Contractor. No other 

contract, statement, or promise relating to the subject matter of this Contract shall be valid or 

binding except by a written amendment to this Contract. 

b.  If any conflicts arise between the terms and conditions of this Contract and the 

terms and conditions of the attached exhibits or any documents expressly incorporated, the terms 

and conditions of this Contract shall control. 

25. SEVERABILITY 

If any part of this Contract or the application thereof is declared invalid for any 

reason, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this Contract which can be given 

effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Contract 

are declared to be severable. 

26. WAIVER 

Failure of City to insist on strict performance shall not constitute a waiver of any 

of the provisions of this Contract or a waiver of any other default of Contractor. 

27. ASSIGNMENT 

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 15 of 25

41



Contractor may not assign this Contract without the prior written consent of the 

City, except that Contractor may assign its right to any money due or to become due hereunder. 

28. EFFECT ON SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Contract shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors, and assigns of the parties hereto. 

29. CONSULTANTS TO SUBMIT STATEMENTS OF ECONOMIC INTEREST 

The City’s Conflict of Interest Code, Resolution No. 60,788-N.S., as amended, 

requires consultants who make a governmental decision or act in a staff capacity as defined in 2 

Cal. Code of Regs. §18700, as amended from time to time, to disclose conflicts of interest by 

filing a Statement of Economic Interest (Form 700). Consultants agree to file such statements 

with the City Clerk at the beginning of the contract period and upon termination of the 

Contractor’s service. 

30. SECTION HEADINGS 

The sections and other headings of this Contract are for convenience of reference 

only and shall be disregarded in the interpretation of this Contract. 

31. CITY BUSINESS LICENSE, PAYMENT OF TAXES, TAX I.D. NUMBER 

Contractor has obtained a City business license as required by B.M.C. Chapter 

9.04, and its license number is written below; or, Contractor is exempt from the provisions of 

B.M.C. Chapter 9.04 and has written below the specific B.M.C. section under which it is exempt. 

Contractor shall pay all state and federal income taxes and any other taxes due. Contractor 

certifies under penalty of perjury that the taxpayer identification number written below is 

correct. 

Business License Number ________________ 

B.M.C. § ________________ 

Taxpayer ID Number _________94-2184326_______ 

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 16 of 25

42



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City and Contractor have executed this Contract as of the 

date first mentioned above. 

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 17 of 25

43



CITY OF BERKELEY  
 
 
 

Pre-approved as to form 
CITY ATTORNEY 

10/2019

By:

City Manager 

Registered on behalf  
of the City Auditor by:

Finance Department 

Attest by:

City Clerk

 
CONTRACTOR

 

 
Printed Name:

Rev. Michael Smith

 
 

By: McGee Avenue Baptist Church, 
Center for Food, Faith and Justice

 
 

Title: Senior Pastor, Executive Director

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 18 of 25

44



 
Tax Identification # 
94-2184326________________________________________________  

Berkeley Business License # _________________________________________  

Incorporated: Yes •  No  • 

Certified Woman Business Enterprise: Yes •  No  • 

Certified Minority Business Enterprise: Yes •  No  • 

If yes, state ethnicity: African 
American_______________________________________________  

Certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise: Yes •  No  •

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 19 of 25

45



Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 20 of 25

46



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 21 of 25

47



EXHIBIT B 

PAYMENT 

Page  of  Document13 03/202018

Page 22 of 25

48



 

Voices Against Violence  
A Program of the McGee Center for Food, Faith & Jus<ce 

Background  

Over the past several years incidents of gun violence in South Berkeley has risen. The targets, 
shooters and victims have been African-American. Additionally, the gun violence has occurred 
during the middle of the day, exposing toddlers, children, youth and adults who are out in their 
neighborhoods or sleeping in their beds to the terror of active shootings. Despite these repeated 
incidents, Berkeley currently has no gun violence prevention or intervention mentoring program 
to address the immediate need to curtail the violence and take the necessary preventive steps 
toward healing and change within the community beyond police investigation. 

While the number of young people caught up in gun violence is relatively small, their impact is 
large. With a small investment of resources, we can engage the highest risk young people in 
stopping the gun violence while getting on a path to positive alternatives. Surrounding this small 
group of highest risk young people are a larger circle of young people who get caught up in the 
violence or become collateral damage. Beyond that is the impact on the overall safety and well-
being of their families and the communities in which they live or visit. 

In August of 2019, with limited funding from a UC Chancellor’s Community Partnership Grant 
and a gift from a local family foundation in addition CFFJ Health and Garden funds we began 
the Voices of Violence Program. In year 1 we served 27 Berkeley Middle and High School 
Students through weekly after-school sessions. Youth participated in workshops ranging from 
violence prevention, Identity formation, diversity training, racial justice, Art expression, urban 
gardening and healthy living. Participants were eligible to receive merit-based stipends for 
attendance, participation and community service projects .  

In addition, the program recognized that many of our youth arrive hungry with limited or no 
resources for food which led the program to also include a weekly meal. Unfortunately, in mid-
March of 2020 the impact of COVID-19 required the program to temporarily shut down. By May 
we realized that the Pandemic would end anytime soon and we began re-thinking our strategies 
to create a program model while we continue to shelter in place and still main contact with our 
young people engaging through social distancing as well as video and online technology. 

 As we begin year 2 despite the ongoing challenges of Sheltering in Place we recognize the 
recent events leading to the Black Lives Matter Uprising for justice and equity means that the 
population that we serve is a vulnerable as ever. As Berkeley seeks to re-imagine strategies for 
community safety the Voice Against Violence Program is one of the few Black led Berkeley-

Page 23 of 25

49



based programs already working in this area with limited funding and resources the City of 
Berkeley. As such, we seek direct and ongoing funding from the City through the proposed 
Youth Listen Campaign to support and expand our efforts to continue and serve some of 
Berkeley’s most vulnerable youth and families. 

Program Overview 
The Voices Against Violence Program is led by Pastor Michael A. Smith who brings nearly of 30 
years of experience in the fields of youth development and non-profit leadership along with 
Lorenzo Grayson, Reverend Angela Jernigan and our Community Healing Liaison, Scott Blake 
who brings nearly 20 years of experience and training in gun and gang violence reduction 
strategies. Similarly, Mr. Blake and Voices Against Violence Team will work directly with 2 
Community Peace Ambassadors(CPA) and 7-10 volunteer mentors from South and West 
Berkeley to implement hybrid elements of the Ceasefire a data-driven violence-reduction 
strategy coordinating law enforcement, social services, and the community. 

Our CPA’s will work with the Community Liaison to identify and recruit 50 high-risk middle and 
high school students in South and West Berkeley in order to create positive opportunities for 
young people while also establishing circles of trust around potential areas and individuals 
within the community that have the potential to escalate thus putting young people and the 
community at-large at risk. In addition to participating in workshops, focus groups and 
restorative circles led by the The Haas Institute and Live Free, middle and high school students 
will have opportunities to participate in and/or lead several special events throughout the year 
while also being eligible to receive other incentives. 

The Community Liaison will meet with the Voices Against Violence CPA’s weekly to keep the 
program aware of potential areas of conflict through social media postings, individual or small 
group meetings and contacts with police, probation, schools and other community-based 
organizations. To understand the overall impact of the Voices Against Violence Program we will 
also engaged in 3- tiered program Evaluation of our 5 program objectives to understand the 
both empirical and anecdotal data throughout the grant cycle. 

Additionally, understanding that life-skills development, employment training and trauma-
informed care are critical elements in combating systemic violence the Voices Against Violence 
Program will recruit, train and certify 6 of the most vulnerable youth and young adults in South 
and West Berkeley ages 17-24 to participate in two 7-week Pre-Employment Training Programs 
through McGee’s Center for Food, Faith & Justice. Upon completion of each 7–week cycle 
participants will receive a $600 Stipend. Participants will also receive ongoing Life-Skills 
Training through Live-Free, CFFJ, BYA and Young Lives Matter in the areas of conflict 
resolution, communication skill, restorative justice, mental trauma and positive minds designed 
to support young people transitioning toward more positive, safe and healthy lifestyles. 

Social Distancing Workshops and On-Farm Training in the Time of COVID-19  
As The City of Berkeley, Alameda County and the nation continues to grapple with the current 
realities of sheltering in place CFFJ and Voices Against Violence continues to adapt to the 
dynamic needs of vulnerable communities in order to increase and sustain impact. In order to 
continue effective service delivery to youth participants and families in Berkeley we will use 
online medium including Zoom, YouTube and Facebook Live to deliver weekly workshops on 
violence prevention, racial justice, arts and crafts, urban agriculture, community food security, 
culinary instruction and local as well as nation issues of  youth voice, inclusion and equity. 

Due to social distancing requirements we will limit in-person sessions and classes to no more 
than 15 participants in one room while observing all social distancing regulations while also 
using required Personal Protection Equipment (PPE) for all staff, participants and students. This 

Page 24 of 25

50



reality means that our hands-on  approach will also include at-home interviews, podcasts, art 
and garden projects while delivering relevant content and instruction through video and online 
technology. In order to ensure all participants complete the program we are staggering the days 
with Group A participating on a Monday-Wednesday schedule and Group B participating on 
Tuesday-Thursday. Subsequently, we are also including virtual violence prevention and anti-
racism workshops, arts shows, cooking classes and urban gardens tours in the region.  

Program Objectives 

The Voices Against Violence Program will achieve 5 major outcomes over the course of 
the program and Based on our Project Timeline 

1. Centralize violence prevention and mentoring efforts through a trained Community 
Healing Liaison who is acquainted with many of the most challenged young people in 
South and West Berkeley along with two Community Peace Ambassadors who will serve 
to connect young people to local services while working with with appropriate parts of 
the City of Berkeley, the Berkeley Unified School District(BUSD) and other community 
organizations to reduce gun violence, promote positive minds and create safer more 
livable communities for the young people and the Berkeley community as a whole. (July 
2020-June 2021) 

2. Partner with the BUSD Office of Family Engagement, as well as UC Berkeley Journalism 
Department and The Other and Belonging Institute to highlight and follow the stories of 
30 high-risk Berkeley youth through a Youth-Led Podcast and Listening Campaign to 
understand the impact of COVID-19 and Sheltering in Place as well the killings of 
George Floyd, Breona Taylor, Ahmad Auberry and the Black Lives Matter Movement on 
the lives and families of participants. (August 2020-June 2021) 

3.  Incubate a trained Support Network of youth-led Social Media Initiatives in South and 
West Berkeley including a Berkeley United Gathering against Gun Violence 
Party(September 2020), TheTears and Testimony for Healing Art and Poetry Slam 
(February 2021) and The Black, Green & Traumatized Earth Day Symposium on Food 
Sovereignty and Climate Justice(April 2021). 

4. Target 12 of the most vulnerable youth and young adults in South and West Berkeley 
through Life-Skills and Pre-Employment Training through CFFJ Urban Garden and 
Culinary Program (July 2020-June 2021). 

5. Train an additional 30 High-Risk Berkeley Youth and Young Adults in researched-based 
Violence Prevention Strategies Through Live Free and the UC Berkeley Other and 
Belonging Institute. Parents of high-risk youth will receive training and support services 
through McGee CFFJ Soulful Parenting Support Initiative a 9-week parenting series 
designed to connect Parents of vulnerable youth with resources and strategies to 
redirect young people engaging or at-risk for gun or gang activity.(September 2020-
June 2021)   

Page 25 of 25

51



52



CONSENT CALENDAR
November 17, 2020

To:         Honorable Members of the City Council
From:    Vice Mayor Sophie Hahn (Author), Councilmember Rigel Robinson 

(Co-sponsor), and Councilmember Ben Bartlett (Co-Sponsor)
Subject: Navigable Cities Framework for Ensuring Access and 

Freedom-of-Movement for People with Disabilities in Berkeley

RECOMMENDATION
1. Refer to the City Manager to incorporate relevant elements of the Navigable 

Cities Framework for Ensuring Access and Freedom-of-Movement for People 
with Disabilities in Berkeley, submitted to the City Council by the Commission on 
Disability, into the Berkeley Pedestrian Master Plan currently being updated, and 
any other planning processes for which the report would provide relevant 
information.

2. Refer to the Public Works and Parks and Waterfront Commissions to return to 
Council reports on ways that elements of the Navigable Cities Framework can be 
incorporated into the work, projects, contracts, and policies of the Public Works 
and the Parks, Recreation & Waterfront Departments.

BACKGROUND
The Commission on Disability recently agreed upon a series of priorities including a 
proposed Navigable Cities Framework to guide investments, regulations, and other 
actions in the City of Berkeley. The framework features three principles of navigable 
cities and four initiatives, summarized as follows: 

Navigable Cities Principles: 

1. All people residing in and/or visiting the City of Berkeley have the right to 
efficient, convenient and barrier-free movement; 

2. People with disabilities (PWDs) often have distinct transportation-related needs 
and may be less able to navigate around items obstructing pathways; and

3. Changes to commercial activities and government policies (whether in Berkeley, 
the Bay Area, the State of California, or the United States as a whole) can have 
notable impacts on navigability. 

Navigable Cities Initiatives: 

Page 1 of 2

53

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.19



1. Support smooth, barrier-free pathways frequently used by PWDs;
2. Ensure that new transportation services provide appropriate access to PWDs 

and do not negatively impact navigability; 
3. Provide appropriate input on plans to adjust the layout of neighborhoods, urban 

centers, streets, pathways, etc.; and 
4. Address the availability and accessibility of appropriate parking options, 

especially in city-owned and/or city-maintained parking lots/garages. 

The City of Berkeley contains hundreds of miles of streets, sidewalks and other public 
spaces (e.g. outdoor plazas and parks), many of which do not provide smooth 
navigation for people with disabilities, who collectively represent around 15% of the 
City’s residents and visitors. In addition, Berkeley features many transportation options 
including pedestrian and bicycle pathways, BART, buses, paratransit, nonprofit 
transportation services, transportation network companies (TNCs, e.g. Uber & Lyft), 
bike-sharing services, etc.; however, not all of these provide full access to people with 
disabilities, endangering independence. 

These issues and more represent ongoing barriers for people with disabilities in 
Berkeley. The Commission on Disability is concerned by a lack of accessibility, in 
general, and in particular considering Berkeley’s identity as the home of the modern 
disability rights movement. The Navigable Cities Framework is aimed at ensuring 
access and freedom-of-movement for people with disabilities in Berkeley, advancing 
their goal to champion and demonstrate social and racial equity.

FISCAL IMPACTS
Staff time.

CONTACT INFORMATION
Vice Mayor Sophie Hahn, Council District 5, 510-682-5905 (cell)

ATTACHMENTS
1. Commission on Disability, Proposed Navigable Cities Framework for Ensuring 

Access and Freedom-of-Movement for People with Disabilities in Berkeley, Oct. 
20, 2020 

Page 2 of 2

54

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2020/10_Oct/Documents/2020-10-20_Special_Item_01_Proposed_Navigable_Cities_Framework_pdf.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2020/10_Oct/Documents/2020-10-20_Special_Item_01_Proposed_Navigable_Cities_Framework_pdf.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2020/10_Oct/Documents/2020-10-20_Special_Item_01_Proposed_Navigable_Cities_Framework_pdf.aspx


 
 
 
 

Upcoming Worksessions – start time is 6:00 p.m. unless otherwise noted 

Scheduled Dates  

Jan. 12 1. Update: Zero Waste Priorities 
2. Undergrounding Task Force Update 

Feb. 16 1. BMASP/Berkeley Pier-WETA Ferry 
2. 

March 16 1. 
2. 

         

 

 

Unscheduled Workshops 
1.  Cannabis Health Considerations 
2.  Berkeley Police Department Hiring Practices (referred by the Public Safety Committee) 
 

Unscheduled Presentations (City Manager) 
1. Systems Realignment 
2. Digital Strategic Plan/FUND$ Replacement/Website Update 
3. Update: Berkeley’s 2020 Vision 
 

55

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
05



 City Council Referrals to the Agenda & Rules Committee and Unfinished 
Business for Scheduling 

1. 47. Amending Chapter 19.32 of the Berkeley Municipal Code to Require Kitchen Exhaust 
Hood Ventilation in Residential and Condominium Units Prior to Execution of a Contract 
for Sale or Close of Escrow (Reviewed by Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation, 
Environment, and Sustainability Committee) (Referred from the January 21, 2020 agenda) 
From: Councilmember Harrison 
Recommendation:  
1. Adopt an ordinance amending Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) 19.32 to require kitchen 
exhaust ventilation in residential and condominium units prior to execution of a contract for 
sale or close of escrow. 
2. Refer to the City Manager to develop a process for informing owners and tenants of the 
proper use of exhaust hoods.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Kate Harrison, Councilmember, District 4, (510) 981-7140 
Note: Referred to Agenda & Rules for future scheduling. 

2. 25. Surveillance Technology Report, Surveillance Acquisition Report, and Surveillance 
Use Policy for Automatic License Plate Readers  (Continued from February 25, 2020. Item 
contains revised and supplemental materials) (Referred from the May 12, 2020 agenda.) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting the Surveillance Technology Report, 
Surveillance Acquisition Report, and Surveillance Use Policy for Automatic License Plate 
Readers submitted pursuant to Chapter 2.99 of the Berkeley Municipal Code.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Andrew Greenwood, Police, (510) 981-5900; Dave White, City Manager's Office, 
(510) 981-7000 
Note: Referred to Agenda & Rules for future scheduling. 

 

56

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
06



Address Board/
Commission

Appeal Period 
Ends 

 Determination 
on Appeal 
Submitted

Public
Hearing

NOD – Notices of Decision
1510 Walnut St, Units A-F (establish pet store use) ZAB 10/30/2020
1920 Vine St (modify dwelling unit and replace accessory building) ZAB 10/30/2020
2221 Carleton St (single-family dwelling) ZAB 10/30/2020
2795 San Pablo Ave (construct mixed-use development) ZAB 11/3/2020
2724 Mabel St (single-family dwelling) ZAB 11/3/2020

Public Hearings Scheduled
0 (2435) San Pablo Ave (construct mixed-use building) ZAB 1/21/2021
1915 Berryman St (Payson House) LPC 1/21/2021
1850 Arch St (add bedrooms to multi-family residential building) ZAB 1/26/2021
1862 Arch St (add bedrooms to multi-family residential building) ZAB 1/26/2021

Remanded to ZAB or LPC

Notes

10/23/2020

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT
WORKING CALENDAR FOR SCHEDULING LAND USE MATTERS

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL

57

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
07



58



 
Office of the City Manager 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: manager@cityofberkeley.info  Website: http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager 

October 22, 2020 
 
To: Berkeley Boards and Commissions 
 
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager 
 
Subject: Commission Meetings During COVID-19 Emergency 
 
 
This memo serves to provide a summary and update of the status of meetings of Berkeley 
Boards and Commissions during the COVID-19 emergency declaration. 

On March 10, 2020, the City Council ratified the proclamation of the Director of Emergency 
Services for a state of local emergency related to the COVID-19 pandemic.  The emergency 
proclamation has been renewed twice by the Council and remains in effect. 

On March 17, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 69,331-N.S. which placed 
limitations of the meetings of City legislative bodies, including all boards and commissions.  
The resolution allows for commissions to meet to conduct time-sensitive, legally mandated 
business with the authorization of the City Manager.  Since that time, several commissions 
have obtained this approval and held meetings; many other commissions have not met at 
all since March. 

The City Manager has periodically reviewed the status of commission meetings with the 
City Council Agenda & Rules Committee.  Recently, at the October 12, 2020, Agenda & 
Rules Committee meeting, the City Manager presented a proposal to allow all commissions 
to meet under limited circumstances.  The Committee voted to endorse the City Manager’s 
recommendation. 

Effective October 12, 2020, all City boards and commissions may meet once to develop and 
finalize their work plan for 2021 and to complete any Council referrals directly related to the 
COVID-19 pandemic response.  A second meeting may be held to complete this work with 
specific authorization by the City Manager.  It is recommended that the meeting(s) occur by 
the end of February 2021. 

Commissions that have been granted permission to meet under Resolution No. 69,331-N.S. 
may continue to meet pursuant to their existing authorization, and may also meet to develop 
their 2021 work plan. 

Commissions that have not requested meetings pursuant to the Resolution No. 69,331-N.S. 
may meet pursuant to the limitations listed above. 

59

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager
arichardson
Typewritten Text
08



Page 2 
October 22, 2020 
Re:  Commission Meetings During COVID-19 Emergency 
 
 
To assist commissions with the development of their work plan and to provide the City 
Council with a consistent framework to review the work plans, the City Manager has 
developed the following items to consider in developing the work plan that is submitted to 
the City Council agenda. 

Prompts for Commissions to use in work plan: 

 What commission items for 2021 have a direct nexus with the COVID-19 response 
or are the result of a City Council referral pertaining to COVID-19? 

 What commission items for 2021 are required for statutory reasons? 

 What commission items for 2021 are required for budgetary or fund allocation 
reasons? 

 What commission items for 2021 support council-adopted or voter-adopted mission 
critical projects or programs? 

 What are the anticipated staff demands (above and beyond baseline) for analysis, 
data, etc., to support commission work in 2021 (baseline duties = posting agendas, 
creating packets, attend meetings, minutes, etc.)?  

The limitations on commission meetings are due to the need to direct staff resources and 
the resources of city legislative bodies to the pandemic response.  Many of the staff 
assigned as commission secretaries are engaged in work with the City Emergency 
Operations Center or have been assigned new specific duties related to the impacts of the 
pandemic. 
 
Meeting frequency for boards and commissions will continue to be evaluated on a regular 
basis by the City Manager in consultation with Department Heads and the City Council.  
More frequent meetings by commissions will be permitted as the conditions under COVID-
19 dictate. 
 
Thank you for your service on our boards and commissions.  The City values the work of 
our commissions and we appreciate your partnership and understanding as we address this 
pandemic as a resilient and vibrant community. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution 69,331-N.S. 
2. List of Commissions with Meeting Data 

 
 
cc: Mayor and City Councilmembers 

Senior Leadership Team 

60



61



62



63



Boards and Commissions Meetings Held Under COVID 
Emergency (through 10/11)

Scheduled Meetings in 
October

Regular Mtg. 
Date Secretary Department

Zoning Adjustments Board 10 1 2nd & 4th Thur. Shannon Allen PLD
Police Review Commission 9 1 2nd & 4th Wed. Katherine Lee CM
Fair Campaign Practices Commission 8 1 3rd Thur. Sam Harvey CA
Design Review Committee 5 1 3rd Thur. Anne Burns PLD
Landmarks Preservation Commission 5 1 1st Thur. Fatema Crane PLD
Open Government Commission 5 1 3rd Thur. Sam Harvey CA
Homeless Services Panel of Experts 4 1 1st Wed Brittany Carnegie HHCS
Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 3 1 4th Wed. Keith May FES
Parks and Waterfront Commission 3 1 2nd Wed. Roger Miller PRW
Planning Commission 3 1st Wed. Alene Pearson PLD
Public Works Commission 3 1 1st Thur. Joe Enke PW
Civic Arts Commission 2 4th Wed. Jennifer Lovvorn OED
Solano Avenue BID Advisory Board 2 Contact Secretary Eleanor Hollander OED
Elmwood BID Advisory Board 1 Contact Secretary Kieron Slaughter OED
Joint Subcom. on Implementation of State Housing Laws 1 4th Wed. Alene Pearson PLD
Mental Health Commission 1 4th Thur. Jamie Works-Wright HHCS
Personnel Board 1 1st Mon. La Tanya Bellow HR
Transportation Commission 1 1 3rd Thur. Farid Javandel PW

Animal Care Commission 0 3rd Wed. Amelia Funghi CM
Cannabis Commission 0 1st Thur. PLD
Children, Youth, and Recreation Commission 0 4th Monday Stephanie Chu PRW
Commission on Aging 0 3rd Wed. Richard Castrillon HHCS
Commission on Disability 0 1st Wed. Dominika Bednarska PW
Commission on Labor 0 3rd Wed., alternate monthsNathan Dahl HHCS
Commission on the Status of Women 0 4th Wed. Shallon Allen CM
Community Environmental Advisory Commission 0 2nd Thur. Viviana Garcia PLD
Community Health Commission 0 4th Thur. Roberto Terrones HHCS
Energy Commission 0 4th Wed. Billi Romain PLD
Homeless Commission 0 2nd Wed. Brittany Carnegie HHCS
Housing Advisory Commission 0 1st Thur. Mike Uberti HHCS
Human Welfare & Community Action Commission 0 3rd Wed. Mary-Claire Katz HHCS
Loan Administration Board 0 Contact Secretary Kieron Slaughter OED
Measure O Bond Oversight Committee 0 3rd Monday Amy Davidson HHCS
Peace and Justice Commission 0 1st Mon. Nina Goldman CM
Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts 0 3rd Thur. Dechen Tsering HHCS
Youth Commission 0 2nd Mon. Ginsi Bryant PRW
Zero Waste Commission 0 4th Mon. Heidi Obermeit PW

64



Lori Droste
Councilmember, District 8

ACTION CALENDAR 
June 30, 2020 

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Councilmember Lori Droste (Author) and Councilmembers Rigel Robinson 
(Co-Sponsor) and Rashi Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor)

Subject: Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery

RECOMMENDATION
1) Reorganize existing commissions with the goal of achieving 20 total 

commissions.

2) Reorganize existing commissions within various departments to ensure that no 
single department is responsible for more than five commissions. 

3) Reorganize commissions within the Public Works Department to ensure Public 
Works oversees no more than three commissions.

4) Refer to the City Manager and every policy committee to agendize at the next 
meeting available to discuss commissions that are in their purview and make 
recommendations to the full Council on how to reorganize and address the 
various policy areas. Commission members should be notified and chairs should 
be invited to participate. Policy committee members are encouraged to consider 
the renaming of some commissions in order to ensure that all policy areas are 
addressed. 

Page 1 of 14

65

RThomsen
Typewritten Text
09



PROBLEM/SUMMARY STATEMENT
Demand for city workers staffing commissions is larger than the City’s ability to supply it 
at an acceptable financial and public health cost. Thirty-seven commissions require 
valuable city staff time and funding that could be better spent providing essential 
services. The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted the City of Berkeley in a myriad of 
ways, resulting in enormous once-in-a-lifetime socioeconomic and public health 
impacts.  While the City Manager and department heads are addressing how to best 
prepare and protect our residents, particularly our most vulnerable, they are also 
required to oversee an inordinate amount of commissions for a medium-sized city at a 
significant cost.

The City of Berkeley faces many challenges, including the COVID-19 pandemic and its 
resultant budget and staffing impacts. Prior to the onset of COVID-19, the City Council 
and staff spent significant Council time on items originating with the City's advisory 
commissions. As the Shelter in Place is gradually lifted, critical city staff will resume 
staffing these 37 commissions. As a result, too much valuable staff time will continue to 
be spent on supporting an excessive amount of commissions in Berkeley rather than 
addressing the basic needs of the City.

BACKGROUND
Review of Existing Plans, Programs, Policies, and Laws
The City of Berkeley has approximately thirty-seven commissions overseen by city 
administration, most of which have at least nine members and who are appointed by 
individual councilmembers. These commissions were intended to be a forum for public 
participation beyond what is feasible at the City Council, so that issues that come before 
the City Council can be adequately vetted.

Some commissions are required by charter or mandated by voter approval or 
state/federal mandate. Those commissions are the following:

1. Board of Library Trustees (charter)
2. Business Improvement Districts (state mandate)
3. Civic Arts Commission (charter)
4. Community Environmental Advisory Commission (state/federal mandate--CUPA)
5. Fair Campaign Practices Commission/Open Government (ballot measure)
6. Homeless Services Panel of Experts (ballot measure)
7. Housing Advisory Commission (state/federal mandate)
8. Human Welfare and Community Action (state/federal mandate)
9. Measure O Bond Oversight Committee (ballot measure)
10.Mental Health Commission (state/federal mandate)
11.Personnel (charter)

Page 2 of 14

66



12.Police Review Commission (ballot measure)
13.Sugar-Sweetened Beverages (ballot measure)

Berkeley must have its own mental health commission because of its independent 
Mental Health Division. In order to receive services, the City needs to have to have an 
advisory board. Additionally, Berkeley’s Community Environmental Advisory 
Commission is a required commission in order to oversee Certified Unified Program 
Agency (CUPA) under California’s Environmental Protection Agency. Additionally, some 
commissions serve other purposes beyond policy advisories. The Children, Youth and 
Recreation Commission, Housing Advisory Commission, and the Human Welfare and 
Community Action Commission advise Council on community agency funding. 
However, some of the aforementioned quasi-judicial and state/federal mandated 
commissions do not need to stand independently and can be combined to meet 
mandated goals.

In comparison to neighboring jurisdictions of similar size, Berkeley has significantly 
more commissions. The median number of commissions for these cities is 12 and the 
average is 15. 

Comparable 
Bay Area 
City

Populatio
n (est.)

Number of 
Commission
s Links

Berkeley 121,000 37
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Leve
l_3_-_Commissions/External%20Roster.pdf

Antioch 112,000 6
https://www.antiochca.gov/government/boards-
commissions/

Concord 130,000 14
https://www.cityofconcord.org/264/Applications-for-
Boards-Committees-Commi

Daly City 107,000 7
http://www.dalycity.org/City_Hall/Departments/city_clerk
/Commissions_Information/boards.htm

Fairfield 117,000 7 https://www.fairfield.ca.gov/gov/comms/default.asp

Fremont 238,000 15
https://www.fremont.gov/76/Boards-Commissions-
Committees

Hayward 160,000 12
https://www.hayward-ca.gov/your-government/boards-
commissions

Richmond 110,000 29
https://www.ci.richmond.ca.us/256/Boards-and-
Commissions

San Mateo 105,000 7 https://www.cityofsanmateo.org/60/Commissions-Boards

Page 3 of 14

67

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_Commissions/External%20Roster.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_Commissions/External%20Roster.pdf
https://www.antiochca.gov/government/boards-commissions/
https://www.antiochca.gov/government/boards-commissions/
https://www.cityofconcord.org/264/Applications-for-Boards-Committees-Commi
https://www.cityofconcord.org/264/Applications-for-Boards-Committees-Commi
http://www.dalycity.org/City_Hall/Departments/city_clerk/Commissions_Information/boards.htm
http://www.dalycity.org/City_Hall/Departments/city_clerk/Commissions_Information/boards.htm
https://www.fairfield.ca.gov/gov/comms/default.asp
https://www.fremont.gov/76/Boards-Commissions-Committees
https://www.fremont.gov/76/Boards-Commissions-Committees
https://www.hayward-ca.gov/your-government/boards-commissions
https://www.hayward-ca.gov/your-government/boards-commissions
https://www.ci.richmond.ca.us/256/Boards-and-Commissions
https://www.ci.richmond.ca.us/256/Boards-and-Commissions
https://www.cityofsanmateo.org/60/Commissions-Boards


Sunnyvale 153,000 10
https://sunnyvale.ca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?
blobid=22804

Vallejo 122,000 17 http://www.ci.vallejo.ca.us/cms/one.aspx?pageId=22192

Consultation and Outreach
To understand the impact on various departments and staffing capacity, the following 
table shows which departments are responsible for overseeing various commissions. 

Commission Name

Overseeing Department 
(Total Commissions in 

Department)
Animal Care Commission City Manager (7)
Civic Arts Commission City Manager (7)
Commission on the Status of Women City Manager (7)
Elmwood BID Advisory Board City Manager (7)
Loan Administration Board City Manager (7)
Peace and Justice Commission City Manager (7)
Solano Ave BID Advisory Board City Manager (7)

Cannabis Commission Planning (8)
Community Environmental Advisory Commission Planning (8)
Design Review Committee Planning (8)
Energy Commission Planning (8)
Joint Subcommittee on the Implementation of State 
Housing Laws Planning (8)

Landmarks Preservation Commission Planning (8)
Planning Commission Planning (8)
Zoning Adjustments Board Planning (8)

Children, Youth, and Recreation Commission Parks (3)
Parks and Waterfront Commission Parks (3)
Youth Commission Parks (3)

Commission on Aging
Health, Housing, and 
Community Services 
(HHCS) (10)

Commission on Labor HHCS (10)
Community Health Commission HHCS (10)

Page 4 of 14

68

https://sunnyvale.ca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?blobid=22804
https://sunnyvale.ca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?blobid=22804
http://www.ci.vallejo.ca.us/cms/one.aspx?pageId=22192


Homeless Commission HHCS (10)
Homeless Services Panel of Experts HHCS(10)
Housing Advisory Commission HHCS (10)
Human Welfare & Community Action Commission HHCS (10)
Measure O Bond Oversight Committee HHCS (10)
Mental Health Commission HHCS (10)
Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts HHCS (10)

Disaster and Fire Safety Commission Fire (1)

Commission on Disability Public Works (5)
Public Works Commission Public Works (5)
Traffic Circle Task Force Public Works (5)
Transportation Commission Public Works (5)
Zero Waste Commission Public Works (5)

Fair Campaign Practices Commission/Open 
Government Commission City Attorney (1)

Personnel Board Human Resources (1)

Police Review Commission Police (1)

Board of Library Trustees Library (1)
Gray=charter
Red=state/federal mandate
Yellow=quasi-judicial
Blue=ballot initiative
Orange=state/federal mandate and quasi-judicial
Green=quasi-judicial and ballot initiative

The departments that staff more than five commissions are Health, Housing, and 
Community Services (10 commissions), Planning (8 commissions), and the City 
Manager’s department (7 commissions). At the same time, some smaller departments 
(e.g. the City Attorney’s office) may be impacted just as meaningfully if they have fewer 
staff and larger individual commission workloads.

With the recent addition of policy committees, proposed legislation is now vetted by 
councilmembers in these forums. Each policy committee is focused on a particular 

Page 5 of 14

69



content area aligned with the City of Berkeley’s strategic plan and is staffed and an 
advisory policy body to certain city departments.  Members of the public are able to 
provide input at these committees as well.  The policy committees currently have the 
following department alignment:

Department and Policy Committee alignment
1. Agenda and Rules–all departments
2. Budget and Finance–City Manager, Clerk, Budget, and Finance
3. Land Use and Economic Development–Clerk, Planning, HHCS, City Attorney, 

and City Manager (OED)
4. Public Safety–Clerk, City Manager, Police, and Fire
5. Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation, Environment and Sustainability 

(Clerk, City Manager, Planning, Public Works, and Parks)
6. Health, Equity, Life Enrichment, and Community (Clerk, City Manager, 

HHCS) 

CRITERIA CONSIDERED
Effectiveness
How does this proposal maximize public interest? For this analysis, the effectiveness 
criterion includes analysis of the benefits to the entire community equitably with specific 
emphasis on public health, racial justice and safety.

Fiscal Impacts/Staffing Costs
What are the costs? The fiscal impact of the proposed recommendation and various 
alternatives considered includes direct costs of commissions.

Administrative Burden/Productivity Loss
What are the operational requirements or productivity gains or losses from this 
proposal?  
The administrative burden criterion guides the analysis in considering operational 
considerations and productivity gains and losses.  While operational considerations and 
tradeoffs are difficult to quantify in dollar amounts, productivity losses were considered 
in its absence. 

Environmental Sustainability
The environmental sustainability criterion guides legislation in order to avoid depletion 
or degradation of the natural resources and allow for long-term environmental quality.

Page 6 of 14

70



ALTERNATIVES
Alternative #1–The Current Situation
The current situation is the status quo. The City of Berkeley would retain all 
commissions and no changes would be made.

Alternative #2–Collaborative Approach with Quantity Parameters
This approach would specify a specific number (20) of commissions the City of Berkeley 
should manage and set parameters around individual department responsibilities. 
Furthermore, it requires a collaborative approach and outreach to address specific 
policy areas by referring it to the Council policy committees for further analysis and 
specific recommendations.

Alternative #3–Committee Alignment, Mandated and Quasi-Judicial Commissions
This alternative would consist of five commissions aligned directly with the policy 
committees in addition to quasi-judicial bodies and ones required by charter, ballot 
measure or law.

● Budget and Finance Commission
● Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation, Environment and Sustainability 

Commission (state/federal mandate--CUPA)
● Health, Equity, and Life Enrichment
● Land Use and Economic Development
● Public Safety
● Board of Library Trustees (charter)
● Civic Arts Commission (charter)
● Community Environmental Advisory Commission (state/federal mandate--CUPA)
● Fair Campaign Practices Commission/Open Government (ballot measure)
● Homeless Services Panel of Experts (ballot measure)
● Housing Advisory Commission (state/federal mandate)
● Human Welfare and Community Action (state/federal mandate)
● Landmarks Commission (quasi-judicial)
● Measure O Bond Oversight Committee (ballot measure)
● Mental Health Commission (state/federal mandate)
● Planning (quasi-judicial)
● Personnel (charter)
● Police Review Commission (ballot measure)
● Sugar-Sweetened Beverages (ballot measure)
● Zoning Adjustments Board (quasi-judicial)

Page 7 of 14

71



Alternative #4: Extreme Consolidation
This alternative represents a prescriptive approach with maximum consolidation in 
content area and mandated commissions, absent charter amendments.

● Board of Library Trustees (charter)
● Business Improvement District (state/federal mandate)
● Civic Arts Commission (charter)
● Community Environmental Advisory Commission/Energy/Zero Waste 

(state/federal--CUPA)
● Fair Campaign Practices Commission/Open Government (ballot measure)
● Homeless Services Panel of Experts (ballot measure)
● Human Welfare and Community Action (state/federal mandate)
● Measure O Bond Oversight Committee (ballot measure)/Housing Advisory 

Commission (state/federal mandate)
● Mental Health Commission (state/federal mandate)
● Personnel (charter)
● Planning Commission (quasi-judicial and appeals)
● Board of Appeals (land use appeals)
● Police Review Commission (ballot measure)
● Health and Sugar-Sweetened Beverages (ballot measure)

PROJECTED OUTCOMES (CRITERIA X ALTERNATIVES)

Current 
Situation

Collaborative 
Approach

Policy 
Committee 
Alignment 

Extreme 
Consolidation

Benefit/
Effectiveness

medium high medium low

Cost high medium low low

Administrative 
Burden

high low low medium

Relative 
Environmental 
Benefit

low medium medium high

Current Situation and Its Effects (Alternative #1)
Effectiveness of the Current Situation
Commissions serve a vital role in the City of Berkeley’s rich process of resident 
engagement. An analysis of agendas over the past several years shows that the 

Page 8 of 14

72



commissions have created policy that have benefited the community in meaningful and 
important ways. In 2019, approximately two-thirds of commission items submitted to 
Council passed. From 2016-2019, an average of 39 items were submitted by 
commissions to Council for consideration. Every year roughly 15-18 (~40-45%) 
commissions do not submit any items for Council policy consideration in any given year. 
The reason for this varies. Some commissions don’t submit policy recommendations 
(BIDs) and some commissions recommendations may not rise to Council level at all or 
come to Council as a staff recommendation (e.g. ZAB and DRC). Additionally, a few 
commissions struggle to reach monthly quorum as there are currently 64 vacancies on 
the various commissions, excluding alternative commissioners. 

It is also important to consider equitable outcomes and the beneficiaries as well. For 
example, the City’s Health, Housing and Community Development department serves 
an important role in addressing COVID-19, racial disparities, inequitable health 
outcomes, affordable housing, and other important community programs. Additionally, 
Health, Housing, and Community Development also staffs ten commissions, more than 
many cities of Berkeley’s size. Council needs to wrestle with these tradeoffs to ensure 
that we seek the maximum benefit for all of the Berkeley community, particularly our 
most vulnerable.

Staffing Costs
Based upon preliminary calculations of staff titles and salary classifications, the average 
staff secretary makes roughly $60-$65/hour. Based upon recent interviews with 
secretaries and department heads, individual commission secretaries work anywhere 
from 8-80 hours a month staffing and preparing for commission meetings. To illustrate 
this example, a few examples are listed below.

Commission Step 5 
Rate of 
Pay

Reported 
Hours a 
Month

Total Direct Cost of 
Commission per Month

Animal Care $70.90 8 $567.20

Landmarks Preservation 
Commission 

$57.96 80 $4,636.80 

Design Review Commission $52.76 60 $3,165.60 

Peace and Justice $60.82 32 $1946.24

Page 9 of 14

73



It is extremely challenging to estimate a specific cost of commissions in the aggregate 
because of the varying workload but a safe estimate of salary costs dedicated to 
commissions would be in the six-figure range. 

Many commissions--particularly quasi-judicial and land use commissions– require more 
than one staff member to be present and prepare reports for commissions. For 
example, Zoning Adjustment Board meetings often last five hours or more and multiple 
staff members spend hours preparing for hearings. The Planning Department indicates 
that in addition to direct hours, additional commission-related staff time adds an extra 
33% staff time.  Using the previous examples, this means that the Landmarks 
Preservation Commission would cost the city over $6,000 in productivity while the 
Design Review Commission would cost the City over $4,000 a month.  

Productivity Losses and Administrative Burden
Current productivity losses are stark because of the sheer amount of hours of staffing 
time dedicated to commissions. As an example, in 2019 one of the City of Berkeley’s 
main homeless outreach workers staffed a commission within the City Manager’s 
department. She spent approximately 32 hours a month working directly on commission 
work. While this is not a commentary on a particular commission, this work directly 
impacted her ability to conduct homeless outreach. The Joint Subcommittee on the 
Interpretation of State Housing Laws is another example. Planners dedicate 50 hours a 
month to that commission. Meanwhile, this commission has limited ability in affecting 
state law and the City Attorney’s office is responsible for interpreting state law. While 
this commission does important work on other issues, there is little nexus in interpreting 
state housing laws and could be disbanded and consolidated with an existing 
commission. If this commission were disbanded, the current planner could dedicate 
significant hours to Council’s top priorities in Planning. This year’s top Council priority is 
the displacement of Berkeley’s residents of color and African Americans (Davila). 

Environmental Sustainability
The current commission structure doesn’t have a large impact on the environment but, 
in relative terms, is the most burdensome because of the potential vehicle miles 
travelled by hundreds of commissioners (VMT) and printing costs associated with a 
large number of commissions.

Page 10 of 14

74



ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

Effectiveness
Alternative #2–Collaborative approach
While the outcome is unknown, a collaborative approach with a specified target quantity 
of commissions and departmental responsibility would likely yield significant benefit to 
the community. Due to the projected budget cuts, city staff will need to have more 
bandwidth to deliver baseline services and priority projects. Civic engagement will still 
be retained due to a myriad of ways to provide public input but more importantly, current 
commissioners and civic partners are invited to provide feedback to the policy 
committees for consideration. Additionally, this approach is a less prescriptive approach 
which allows Council to acknowledge that the current number of commissions is 
unsustainable and impacts baseline services. Instead of recommending specific 
commission cuts at this moment, this approach simply allows Council to state an 
appropriate number of commissions (20) and acknowledge the severe staffing impacts 
of the current configuration. Furthermore, twenty commissions is a reasonable starting 
point, especially when considering that most area cities that are approximately 
Berkeley’s size have seven commissions.

Alternative 3--Policy Committee Alignment
This approach would yield some benefit in that commissions would reflect current policy 
committees and would directly advise those bodies. This is beneficial because 
commissions directly aligned with policy committees would be an independent civic 
replica of the appointed policy committee bodies.  It further retains mandated 
commissions. However, this prescriptive approach doesn’t allow for flexibility in retaining 
historically important commissions and it does not address the benefit of potentially 
consolidating two commissions that address the same policy content area. For instance, 
it may be possible to combine the sugar-sweetened beverage oversight panel with the 
Health, Life, and Equity commission or the CEAC with the Facilities, Infrastructure, 
Transportation, Environment and Sustainability.

Alternative 4–Extreme Consolidation–
This approach is the most drastic alternative and the overall effectiveness is likely low, 
mainly due to potential community backlash due to Berkeley’s long history of civic 
engagement. Furthermore, the Planning Commission would likely become 
overburdened and less effective because land use appeals would have to be routed 
through the Planning Commission.

Page 11 of 14

75



Costs/Fiscal Impact
Alternative 2–Collaborative Approach
The fiscal impact of the Collaborative Approach is unknown at this time because this 
recommendation does not prescribe specific commission consolidations or cuts. 
However, if commissions are reorganized such that Berkeley will have 20 instead of 38, 
there will be significant direct cost savings. One can reasonably assume that the direct 
financial cost could reduce to almost half the current amount.

Alternative 3--Policy Committee Alignment
The fiscal impact of Policy Committee Alignment would yield significant savings due to 
commission consolidation. One can reasonably assume that the direct financial cost 
could reduce to more than half the current amount.

Alternative 4–Extreme Consolidation
Extreme Consolidation would yield the most savings due to commission consolidation. 
One can reasonably assume that the direct financial cost would reduce to 25%-30% of 
the current amount spent on commission work.

Productivity
Alternative 2–Collaborative Approach
The most glaring impact on the current commission structure is administrative impacts 
and productivity. Whether City Council consolidates commissions or not, attributable 
salary costs will still exist. The primary benefit of pursuing the Collaborative Approach 
would center on productivity. The City of Berkeley is likely to garner significant 
productivity gains by specifying a target number of commissions overall and within 
departments. Using the Peace and Justice and Joint Subcommittee on the 
Interpretation of State Housing Laws examples above, more staff will be able to focus 
on core services and priority programs. Thousands of hours may be regained by 
dedicated staff to tackle the tough issues our community faces, especially in light of 
COVID-19 and concerns around racial equity.

Alternative 3–Policy Committee Alignment
This alternative likely will yield the same productivity benefits as the collaborative 
approach, if not more. The City of Berkeley would likely garner significant productivity 
gains by specifying less than twenty commissions. Thousands of hours may be 
regained by dedicated staff to tackle the tough issues our community faces, especially 
in light of COVID-19 and concerns around racial equity.

Page 12 of 14

76



Alternative 4–Extreme Consolidation
This alternative would likely provide the most productivity gains and lessen 
administrative burdens overall. However, there could be unintended consequences of 
productivity within the planning department absent additional policy changes. For 
example, the quasi-judicial Zoning Adjustments Board and Planning Commission 
agendas are packed year round.  It is unclear whether eliminating one of these 
commissions would lessen the administrative burden and increase productivity in the 
Planning Department or whether those responsibilities would merely shift commissions. 
At the same time, the Planning Department could benefit from reducing commissions to 
increase productivity within the planning department.  

Environmental Sustainability
Alternative 2–Collaborative approach
This alternative doesn’t have a large impact on the environment other than potential 
vehicle miles travelled by hundreds of commissioners (VMT) and printing costs. 
However, these environmental impacts could be cut in half with commission 
reorganization.

Alternative 3--Policy Committee Alignment
This alternative doesn’t have a large impact on the environment other than potential 
vehicle miles travelled by hundreds of commissioners (VMT) and printing costs. 
However, these environmental impacts could be cut in half with commission 
reorganization.

Alternative 4–Extreme Consolidation
This alternative would have negligible impacts on the environment other than potential 
vehicle miles travelled by hundreds of commissioners (VMT) and printing costs. 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The Collaborative Approach is the best path forward in order to pursue Berkeley’s 
commitment to 

● Create affordable housing and housing support services for our most vulnerable 
community members

● Be a global leader in addressing climate change, advancing environmental 
justice, and protecting the environment

● Champion and demonstrate social and racial equity
● Provide an efficient and financially-healthy City government
● Provide state-of-the-art, well-maintained infrastructure, amenities, and facilities
● Foster a dynamic, sustainable, and locally-based economy
● Create a resilient, safe, connected, and prepared City

Page 13 of 14

77



● Be a customer-focused organization that provides excellent, timely, easily-
accessible service and information to the community

● Attract and retain a talented and diverse City government workforce

The status quo–37 commissions– is too costly and unproductive. At the same time, civic 
engagement and commission work absolutely deserve an important role in Berkeley. 
Consequently, this legislation retains commissions but centers on overall community 
benefit, staff productivity, and associated costs. This is imperative to address, especially 
in light of COVID-19 and community demands for reinvestment in important social 
services.

Page 14 of 14

78



 
[First Last name] 
Councilmember District [District No.] 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704    Tel: 510.981.XXXX    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510.981.XXXX 
E-Mail: xxxxx@CityofBerkeley.info 

 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL REVISED  
AGENDA MATERIAL 

for Supplemental Packet 2 
 
 
Meeting Date:   February 4, 2020 
 
Item Number:   2 
 
Item Description:   Statement on Item 2 - Amendments to the Berkeley Election  

Reform Act to prohibit Officeholder Accounts; Amending BMC  
Chapter 2.12 

 
Submitted by:  Councilmember Hahn 
 
This item seeks to outlaw Officeholder Accounts in Berkeley. I would like to offer an 
alternative: to allow Officeholder Accounts but establish regulations to limit them in ways that 
reflect Berkeley’s limitations on campaign donations and consider narrowing the uses for 
which Officeholder Account funds can be used.   
 
The action I advocate for Council to take is to refer a discussion of Officeholder accounts to 
the Agenda and Rules Committee, to consider a reasonable set of limitations and rules for 
such accounts and bring back recommendations to the full Council, for the Council to 
consider referring to the Fair Campaign Practices Committee. 
 
 

 

Page 1 of 72

79

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
10



 
ACTION CALENDAR 

February 4, 2020 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
From:  Vice Mayor Sophie Hahn  
Subject: Statement on Item 2 - Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to 

prohibit Officeholder Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
This item seeks to outlaw Officeholder Accounts in Berkeley. I would like to offer an alternative: 
to allow Officeholder Accounts but establish regulations to limit them in ways that reflect 
Berkeley’s limitations on campaign donations and consider narrowing the uses for which 
Officeholder Account funds can be used.   
 
The action I advocate for Council to take is to refer a discussion of Officeholder accounts to the 
Agenda and Rules Committee, to consider a reasonable set of limitations and rules for such 
accounts and bring back recommendations to the full Council, for the Council to consider 
referring to the Fair Campaign Practices Committee. 
 
Officeholder accounts are accounts an elected official can open, and raise funds for, to pay for 
expenses related to the office they hold.1 They are not campaign accounts, and cannot be used 
for campaign purposes. The types of expenses Officeholder Accounts can be used for include 
research, conferences, events attended in the performance of government duties, printed 
newsletters, office supplies, travel related to official duties, etc. Cities can place limits on 
Officeholder Accounts, as Oakland has done.2 Officeholder Accounts must be registered as 
official “Committees” and adhere to strict public reporting requirements, like campaign 
accounts. They provide full transparency to the public about sources and uses of funds. 
 
The FCPC bases its recommendation to prohibit Officeholder Accounts on arguments about 
“equity” and potential “corruption” in elections. The report refers repeatedly to “challengers” and 
“incumbents,” suggesting that Officeholder Accounts are vehicles for unfairness in the election 
context. 
 
I believe that the FCPC’s recommendations reflect a misunderstanding of the purpose and uses 
of Officeholder Accounts, equating them with campaign accounts and suggesting that they 
create an imbalance between community members who apparently have already decided to run 
against an incumbent (so-called “challengers”) and elected officials who are presumed to be 

                                                
1 http://www.fppc.ca.gov/content/dam/fppc/NS-
Documents/LegalDiv/Regulations/Index/Chapter5/18531.62.pdf 
2 http://www2.oaklandnet.com/w/OAK052051  

Page 2 of 72

80

http://www.fppc.ca.gov/content/dam/fppc/NS-Documents/LegalDiv/Regulations/Index/Chapter5/18531.62.pdf
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/content/dam/fppc/NS-Documents/LegalDiv/Regulations/Index/Chapter5/18531.62.pdf
http://www2.oaklandnet.com/w/OAK052051


always running for office. The recommendations do not take into account some important 
framing: the question of what funds are otherwise available to pay for Officeholder-type 
expenses for Officeholders or members of the public. Contrary to the conclusions of the FCPC, I 
believe Officeholder accounts are an important vehicle to redress a significant disadvantage for 
elected officials, whose ability to exercise free speech in the community and participate in 
conferences and events related to their profession is constrained by virtue of holding public 
office, as compared to community members, whose speech rights are unrestricted in any 
manner whatsoever, and who can raise money to use for whatever purposes they desire. 
 
Outlawing Officeholder Accounts is also posited as a means to create equity between more and 
less wealthy Officeholders, on the theory that less affluent Officeholders will have less access to 
fundraising for Officeholder Accounts than more affluent Officeholders.  Because there are no 
prohibition on using personal funds for many of the purposes for which Officeholder Account 
funds can be used, prohibiting Officeholder Accounts I believe has the opposite effect; it leaves 
more affluent Officeholders with the ability to pay for Officeholder expenses from personal 
funds, without providing an avenue for less affluent Officeholders, who may not have available 
personal funds, to raise money from their supporters to pay for such Officeholder expenses. 
 
The question of whether Officeholder Accounts should be allowed in Berkeley plays out in the 
context of a number of rules and realities that are important to framing any analysis.   
 
First, by State Law, elected officials are prohibited from using public funds for a variety of 
communications that many constituents nevertheless expect. For example, an elected official 
may not use public funds to send a mailing announcing municipal information to constituents, 
“such as a newsletter or brochure, […] delivered, by any means […] to a person’s residence, 
place of employment or business, or post office box.”3 Nor may an elected official mail an item 
using public funds that features a reference to the elected official affiliated with their public 
position.4  Note that Electronic newsletters are not covered by these rules, and can and do 
include all of these features, even if the newsletter service is paid for by the public entity. That 
said, while technically not required, many elected officials prefer to use email newsletter 
distribution services (Constant Contact, MailChimp, Nationbuilder, etc.) paid for with personal 
(or “Officeholder”) funds, to operate in the spirit of the original rules against using public funds 
for communications that include a photo of, or references to, the elected official.   
 
Without the ability to raise funds for an Officeholder Account, for an elected official to send a 
paper newsletter to constituents or to use an email newsletter service that is not paid for with 
public funds, they must use personal funds. A printed newsletter mailed to 5-6,000 households 
(a typical number of households in a Berkeley City Council District) can easily cost $5,000+, and 
an electronic mail service subscription typically costs $10 (for the most basic service) to $45 per 
month, a cost of $120.00 to over $500 per year - in personal funds.   

                                                
3 http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-
funds/campaign-related-communications.html 
4 http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-
funds/campaign-related-communications.html 

Page 3 of 72

81

http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-funds/campaign-related-communications.html
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-funds/campaign-related-communications.html
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-funds/campaign-related-communications.html
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-funds/campaign-related-communications.html


 
Second, Berkeley City Councilmembers and the Mayor of Berkeley are not paid enough for 
there to be any reasonable expectation that personal funds should be used for these types of 
expenses.5  For many Councilmembers and/or the Mayor, work hours are full time - or more - 
and there is no other source of income.  
  
Finally, and most importantly, local elected officials are restricted from accepting money or gifts. 
An elected official cannot under any circumstances raise money to pay for Officeholder 
expenses such as printed communications, email newsletter services, travel and admission to 
industry conferences for which the elected official is not an official delegate (e.g., conferences 
on City Planning, Green Cities, Municipal Finance, etc.), and other expenses related to holding 
office that are not covered by public funds. Again, without the possibility of an Officeholder 
Account, an elected official generally must use personal funds for these expenses, allowing 
more affluent elected officials to participate while placing a hardship or in some cases a 
prohibition on the ability of less affluent elected officials to undertake these Officeholder-type 
activities - which support expected communications with constituents and participation in 
industry activities that improve the elected official’s effectiveness.   
 
The elected official’s inability to raise funds from others must be contrasted with the ability of a 
community member - a potential “challenger” who has not yet declared themselves to be an 
actual candidate - or perhaps a neighborhood association, business or corporation (Chevron, for 
example) - to engage in similar activities. Nothing restricts any community member or 
organization from using their own funds - or funds obtained from anyone - a wealthy friend, a 
corporation, a local business, a community organization or their neighbors - for any purpose 
whatsoever.   
 
Someone who doesn’t like the job an elected official is doing could raise money from family or 
connections anywhere in the community - or the world - and mail a letter to every person in the 
District or City criticizing the elected official, or buy up every billboard or banner ad on Facebook 
or Berkeleyside to broadcast their point of view.  By contrast, the elected official, without access 
to an Officeholder Account, could only use personal funds to “speak” with their own printed 
letter, billboard or advertisement. Community members (including future “challengers”) can also 
attend any and all conferences they want, engage in travel to visit interesting cities and projects 
that might inform their thoughts on how a city should be run, and pay for those things with 
money raised from friends, colleagues, businesses, corporations, foreign governments - 
anyone. They are private citizens with full first amendment rights and have no limitations, no 
reporting requirements, no requirements of transparency or accountability whatsoever. 
 
The imbalance is significant. Outside of the campaign setting, where all declared candidates 
can raise funds and must abide by the same rules of spending and communications, elected 
officials cannot raise money for any expenses whatsoever, from any source, while community 

                                                
5 Councilmembers receive annual compensation of approximately $36,000, while the Mayor receives 
annual compensation of approximately $55,000.5   

Page 4 of 72

82



members, including organizations and private companies, can raise as much money as they 
want from any sources, and use that money for anything they choose.   
 
Without the ability to establish and fund an Officeholder Account, the only option an elected 
official has is to use personal funds, which exacerbates the potential imbalance between elected 
officials with more and less personal funds to spend.  Elected officials work within a highly 
regulated system, which can limit their ability to “speak” and engage in other activities members 
of the public are able to undertake without restriction. Officeholder Accounts restore some 
flexibility by allowing elected officials to raise money for expenses related to holding office, so 
long as the sources and uses of those funds is made transparent.   
 
By allowing Officeholder Accounts and regulating them, Berkeley can place limits on amounts 
that can be raised, and on the individuals/entities from whom funds can be accepted, similar (or 
identical) to the limits Berkeley places on sources of campaign funds. Similarly, Berkeley can 
restrict uses of funds beyond the State’s restrictions, to ensure funds are not used for things like 
family members’ travel, as is currently allowed by the State. Oakland has taken this approach, 
and has a set of Officeholder Account regulations that provide a good starting point for Berkeley 
to consider.6      
 
I respectfully ask for a vote to send the question of potential allowance for, and regulation of, 
Officeholder Accounts to the Agenda and Rules Committee for further consideration. 
 
CONTACT: Sophie Hahn, District 5: (510) 981-7150 
 

                                                
6 http://www2.oaklandnet.com/w/OAK052051 

Page 5 of 72

83



 
Fair Campaign Practices Commission 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6998 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: sharvey@cityof berkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/ 

 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL  
AGENDA MATERIAL 

for Supplemental Packet 2  
 
 
Meeting Date:   February 4, 2020 
 
Item Number:   2 
 
Item Description:   Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to prohibit 
Officeholder Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12 
 
Submitted by:  Samuel Harvey; Deputy City Attorney / Secretary, Fair 
Campaign Practices Commission 
 
Attachment 4 to the report (“Memorandum signed by City Attorney Manuela 
Albuquerque”) included an attachment which was erroneously omitted from the 
Council item.  Attached is Attachment 4 (for context) along with the additional pages 
which should be included to appear as pages 16 -17 of the item.   
 
 

 

Page 6 of 72

84

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager


Page 14 of 16Page 7 of 72

85



Page 15 of 16Page 8 of 72

86



Page 9 of 72

87



Page 10 of 72

88



Page 11 of 72

89



Page 12 of 72

90



Page 13 of 72

91



Page 14 of 72

92



Page 15 of 72

93



Page 16 of 72

94



Page 17 of 72

95



Page 18 of 72

96



Page 19 of 72

97



Page 20 of 72

98



Page 21 of 72

99



Page 22 of 72

100



Page 23 of 72

101



Page 24 of 72

102



Page 25 of 72

103



Page 26 of 72

104



Page 27 of 72

105



Page 28 of 72

106



Page 29 of 72

107



Page 30 of 72

108



Page 31 of 72

109



Page 32 of 72

110



Page 33 of 72

111



Page 34 of 72

112



Page 35 of 72

113



Page 36 of 72

114



Page 37 of 72

115



Page 38 of 72

116



Page 39 of 72

117



Page 40 of 72

118



Page 41 of 72

119



Page 42 of 72

120



Page 43 of 72

121



Page 44 of 72

122



Page 45 of 72

123



Page 46 of 72

124



Page 47 of 72

125



Page 48 of 72

126



Page 49 of 72

127



Page 50 of 72

128



Page 51 of 72

129



Page 52 of 72

130



Page 53 of 72

131



Page 54 of 72

132



Page 55 of 72

133



Page 56 of 72

134



Fair Campaign Practices Commission
CONSENT CALENDAR
July 28, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Fair Campaign Practices Commission

Submitted by: Dean Metzger, Chairperson, Fair Campaign Practices Commission

Subject: Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to prohibit 
Officeholder Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12

RECOMMENDATION
Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt first reading of an ordinance 
amending the Berkeley Election Reform Act, Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 2.12, 
to prohibit Officeholder Accounts (See Section 18531.62. Elected State Officeholder 
Bank Accounts, Regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission).

POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
On June 29, 2020, the Agenda and Rules Committee adopted the following action: 
M/S/C (Hahn/Wengraf) to make a Positive Recommendation to the City Council that the 
item be referred to the Agenda & Rules Committee to be considered with other related 
referrals from the Fair Campaign Practices Commission.  The item will be calendared for 
the Consent Calendar on the July 28, 2020 agenda. Vote: All Ayes.

SUMMARY
Contributions to and expenditures from Officeholder Accounts provide an unfair 
advantage to incumbents. They also increase the reliance on private campaign 
contributions and risk increasing the perception of corruption. Amending the Berkeley 
Election Reform Act to prohibit Officeholder Accounts will help to level the playing field 
in municipal elections, which was also a goal of the Fair Elections Act of 2016.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
The proposed amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act (BERA) were adopted 
by the Fair Campaign Practices Commission (FCPC) at its regular meeting of 
November 21, 2019.

Action: M/S/C (Smith/Saver) to adopt the proposed amendments to BERA related to 
Officeholder Accounts.
Vote: Ayes: Metzger, Ching, Saver, Blome, McLean, Tsang, Smith; Noes: none; 
Abstain: none; Absent: O’Donnell (excused).

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 • Tel: (510) 981-7000 • TDD: (510) 981-6903 • Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

Page 57 of 72

135

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager


Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act 
to prohibit Officeholder Accounts CONSENT CALENDAR

July 28, 2020

Page 2

Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 2.12.051, BERA may be amended by the 
“double green light” process. This process requires that the FCPC adopt the amendments 
by a two-thirds vote, and the City Council hold a public hearing and adopt the 
amendments by a two-thirds vote.

BACKGROUND
The Fair Campaign Practices Commission has supported creating the circumstances in 
which the incumbent and challengers during an election play on as level a playing field 
as possible and reducing the influence of private campaign contributions. For instance, 
the Berkeley Fair Elections Act of 2016, which was passed by voters and recommended 
to Council by the Commission, included the following express purposes:

• Eliminate the danger of actual corruption of Berkeley officials caused by 
the private financing of campaigns.

• Help reduce the influence of private campaign contributions on Berkeley 
government.

• Reduce the impact of wealth as a determinant of whether a person 
becomes a candidate.

(Section 2.12.490(B)-(D).)

A recent inquiry to the Commission Secretary regarding the regulation of Officeholder 
Accounts resulted in a request from a Commissioner to have discussion of these 
accounts placed on the May 16, 2019 agenda for possible action. The following motion 
was made and passed at that meeting:

Motion to request staff work with Commissioner Smith to bring to a future 
meeting background information and a proposal to eliminate officeholder 
accounts (M/S/C: O’Donnell/Blome; Ayes: Blome, Ching, McLean, Metzger, 
O’Donnell, Saver, Smith, Tsui; Noes: None; Abstain: None; Absent: Harper 
(excused)).

Definition of an Officeholder Account

Under state law, an “officeholder account” refers to the funds held in a single bank 
account at a financial institution in the State of California separate from any other bank 
account held by the officeholder and that are used for “paying expenses associated with 
holding public office.” Officeholder Account funds cannot be used to pay “campaign 
expenses.” This definition is drawn from state law applicable to statewide elected 
officials: Government Code section 85316 (Attachment 2), and the accompanying 
regulation by the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) codified at Title 2, Division 
6, of the California Code of Regulations, Section 18531.62 (Attachment 3).

Contributions to or expenditures from an Officeholder Account are not subject to 
BERA’s reporting requirements.  (The FPPC still requires the reporting of activity 
relating to Officeholder Accounts, which is available to view on Berkeley’s Public Access 
Portal.)  If, however, a complaint is filed that an Officeholder Account is used for

Page 58 of 72

136



Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act 
to prohibit Officeholder Accounts CONSENT CALENDAR

July 28, 2020

Page 3

campaign contributions or to pay “campaign expenses,” BERA can be used to respond 
to the complaint. The legal arguments for these statements are contained in a 
memorandum signed by City Attorney Manuela Albuquerque to Aide to Mayor Shirley 
Dean, Barbara Gilbert, dated December 28, 1999 and a December 9, 1991 
memorandum by Secretary and Staff Counsel to the FCPC, Sarah Reynoso, that is 
attached to the December 28, 1999 memo. (Attachment 4.) Because the BERA 
provisions relied on in these memoranda have not been amended, and because no 
other BERA provisions have been added to regulate officeholder accounts, the 
memoranda’s conclusions remain valid and are still controlling guidance.

Contributions to Officeholder Accounts

Funds raised for Officeholder Accounts in Berkeley are not subject to any limitations, 
either from the FPPC or BERA. Neither is there a limit on the total amount the 
Officeholder Account fund may receive in contributions per year. Contributions to an 
elected official’s Officeholder Account may put that contributor in a more favorable light 
with the elected official than might otherwise be the case.

Expenditures from Officeholder Accounts

Except for the restriction that Officeholder Account funds cannot be used for “campaign 
expenses,” BERA does not restrict how funds from Officeholder Accounts can be used.

There are a number of permissible expenditures from Officeholder Accounts that could 
put an elected official in a favorable light with voters that are not available to a 
challenger for that office.  A donation to a nonprofit organization, although technically 
not a “campaign expense,” would be seen favorably by those receiving the funds as well 
as individuals favorably disposed to the nonprofit organization receiving the funds. An 
individual running against this incumbent would have to draw on their own resources to 
make contributions to nonprofit organizations.

As long as political campaigns are not included, newsletters mailed to constituents 
related to events, information, or an officeholder’s position on matters before the 
Council are a permissible Officeholder Account expenditure. This keeps the 
incumbent’s name in front of the voter in a way unavailable to a challenger unless they 
pay for a newsletter and its distribution from their own resources.

Expenditures from Officeholder Account funds for flowers and other expressions of 
condolences, congratulations, or appreciation, while technically not “campaign 
expenses,” also increase the probability that the recipient will be favorably predisposed 
toward the elected official as a candidate for reelection or election to another office.
Again, a challenger would have to draw on their own resources to express condolences, 
congratulations, or appreciation to their potential supporters.

Page 59 of 72

137



Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act 
to prohibit Officeholder Accounts CONSENT CALENDAR

July 28, 2020

Page 4

Further, officeholder accounts can be used to pay for a broad range of office expenses, 
such as meals, travel, parking tickets, or contributions to other candidates or political 
parties.1  Eliminating officeholder accounts would reduce reliance on and the influence 
of private contributions for these expenditures.

Recommendation

To make elections more equitable between challengers and incumbent and for the 
reasons given above, the Fair Campaign Practices Commission recommends 
prohibiting Officeholder Accounts.

Berkeley will not be the first to prohibit Officeholder Accounts. The San Jose Municipal 
Code was amended to prohibit officeholder accounts in January 2008.  (Chapter 12.06
– ELECTIONS, San Jose, CA Code of Ordinances, p. 10)

Part 8 - OFFICEHOLDER ACCOUNTS
12.06.810 - Officeholder account prohibited.

No city officeholder, or any person or committee on behalf of a city 
officeholder may establish an officeholder account or an account established 
under the Political Reform Act, California Government Code Section 8100 et seq. 
as amended, for the solicitation or expenditure of officeholder funds. Nothing in 
this section shall prohibit an officeholder from spending personal funds on official 
or related business activities.

The following additions to BERA are proposed:

2.12.157 Officeholder Account

“Officeholder Account” means any bank account maintained by an elected officer or by 
any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, and whose funds are used for 
expenses associated with holding office and not for direct campaign purposes.

2.12.441 Officeholder account prohibited

A. No elected officer, or any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, 
may establish an officeholder account.

B. No elected officer, or any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, 
may use contributions, as defined in 2.12.100, for expenses associated with 
holding office.

1 Under state law applicable to state elected officials, officeholders may use campaign contributions for 
“expenses that are associated with holding office.” (Govt. Code, § 89510.) To qualify, expenditures must 
be “reasonably related to a legislative or governmental purpose.” (Id., § 89512.) “Expenditures which 
confer a substantial personal benefit shall be directly related to a political, legislative, or governmental 
purpose.” (Ibid.)

Page 60 of 72

138



Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act 
to prohibit Officeholder Accounts PUBLIC HEARING

January 21, 2020

C. Anyone holding an active Officeholder Account on the date this change to 
BERA is adopted on a second reading by the City Council has one year from 
that date to terminate their Officeholder Account, in accordance with FPPC 
guidelines.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identified environmental effects related to the recommendation in this 
report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
This proposed change to BERA will help to level the playing field between challengers 
and the incumbent running for elective office.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
A Subcommittee was formed to consider the options of (1) amending the Berkeley 
Elections Reform Act, BMC Chapter 2.12, to prohibit Officeholder Accounts, (2) 
amending BERA to mitigate possible advantages incumbents with an Officeholder 
Accounts have over challengers, or (3) doing nothing with regard to Officeholder 
Accounts. The four members of the Subcommittee recommended unanimously to the 
full Commission to amend the Berkeley Elections Reform Act, BMC Chapter 2.12, to 
prohibit Officeholder Accounts.

CITY MANAGER
The City Manager takes no position on the content and recommendations of this report.

CONTACT PERSON
Dean Metzger, Chair, Fair Campaign Practices Commission. 981-6998

Attachments:
1: Proposed Ordinance
2: Government Code section 85316
3: Section 18531.62 (Elected State Officeholder Bank Accounts), Regulations of the 
Fair Political Practices Commission, Title 2, Division 6, California Code of Regulations 
4: Memorandum signed by City Attorney Manuela Albuquerque to Aide to Mayor 
Shirley Dean, Barbara Gilbert (including attached memorandum signed by Secretary 
and Staff Counsel to the FCPC, Sarah Reynoso, to the FCPC)

Page 5

Page 61 of 72

139



ORDINANCE NO. ##,###-N.S.

OFFICEHOLDER ACCOUNT PROHIBITED; AMENDING BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE 
CHAPTER 2.12

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1.  That Berkeley Municipal Code section 2.12.157 is added to read as follows:

BMC 2.12.157 Officeholder account

“Officeholder Account” means any bank account maintained by an elected officer or by 
any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, and whose funds are used for 
expenses associated with holding office and not for direct campaign purposes.

Section 2.  That Berkeley Municipal Code section 2.12.441 is added to read as follows:

BMC 2.12.441 Officeholder account prohibited

A. No elected officer, or any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, 
may establish an officeholder account.

B. No elected officer, or any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, 
may use contributions, as defined in 2.12.100, for expenses associated with 
holding office.

C. This provision does not affect a candidate’s ability to establish a legal defense 
fund or the requirements for such a fund, as set forth in the Political Reform 
Act or by regulation.

D. Any active Officeholder Account on the date this change to BERA is adopted 
on a second reading by the City Council has one year from that date to 
terminate their Officeholder Account.

Section 3. Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the 
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 
Martin Luther King Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be 
filed at each branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a 
newspaper of general circulation

Page 62 of 72

140



10/8/2019 Law section

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=85316. 1/1

Select Code Search

Highlight

 

Home Bill Information California Law Publications Other Resources My Subscriptions My Favorites

Page 63 of 72

141



Page 64 of 72

142



Page 65 of 72

143



Page 66 of 72

144



Page 67 of 72

145



Page 68 of 72

146



Page 69 of 72

147



Page 70 of 72

148



Page 71 of 72

149



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL

AMENDMENTS TO THE BERKELEY ELECTION REFORM ACT

The Fair Campaign Practices Commission is proposing amendments to the Berkeley 
Election Reform Act related to the prohibition of officeholder accounts.

The hearing will be held on, February 4, 2020, at 4:00 p.m. in the School District Board 
Room, 1231 Addison Street.

A copy of the agenda material for this hearing will be available on the City’s website at 
www.CityofBerkeley.info as of January 30, 2020.

For further information, please contact Samuel Harvey, Commission Secretary at 981- 
6998.

Written comments should be mailed or delivered directly to the City Clerk, 2180 Milvia 
Street, Berkeley, CA 94704, in order to ensure delivery to all Councilmembers and 
inclusion in the agenda packet.

Communications to the Berkeley City Council are public record and will become part of 
the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please 
note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not 
required, but if included in any communication to the City Council, will become 
part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact 
information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
or in person to the City Clerk.  If you do not want your contact information included in 
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please 
contact the City Clerk at 981-6900 or clerk@cityofberkeley.info for further information.

Published: January 24, 2020 – The Berkeley Voice
Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 2.12.051

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
I hereby certify that the Notice for this Public Hearing of the Berkeley City Council was 
posted at the display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek 
Building, 2134 Martin Luther King Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on 
January 30, 2020.

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Page 72 of 72

150

http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/
mailto:clerk@cityofberkeley.info


Open Government Commission
ACTION CALENDAR
September 15, 2020

To:      Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From:      Open Government Commission

Submitted by:     Brad Smith, Chair, Open Government Commission 

Subject:              Relinquishments and grants from Councilmembers’ office budgets

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution creating a temporary advisory committee consisting of three (3) 
members each of the City Council and the Open Government Commission (“OGC”) to 
enable discussion between the Council and the OGC to make recommendations 
governing relinquishments and grants from Councilmembers’ office budgets.  

FISCAL IMPACT OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The issue of D-13 accounts (Council Budget Funds) being used for purposes other than 
office expenses has been raised at the OGC.  While commission members agree that it 
is admirable to donate to organizations that serve the City, some members feel the 
practice of using office budget funds for this purpose and attaching individual 
Councilmembers’ names to the donation may provide unfair advantage to an 
incumbent.

The two main concerns identified by some commissioners with the current practice are:

1. Councilmembers are able to initiate grants to organizations, at their discretion, 
which may raise their public profile.

2. Attaching the name of a Councilmember to a grant from the City of Berkeley may 
confer an advantage for the incumbent over would-be challengers.

The current practice was established in the early 2000's because councilmembers were 
granting public money to individuals and organizations, without approval of the Council. 

Page 1 of 4

151

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
11



This led to a concern about the potential for corruption and favoritism. The City Attorney 
established the existing system, though because the councilmembers’ names are 
attached to the grants, some concern remains.

From recent discussion at OGC, commissioners are in general agreement that ending 
the practice of attaching the name of a councilmember to a grant will help to alleviate 
the main concerns: 1 & 2 above.  At the OGC’s April 23, 2020 meeting, commissioners 
unanimously approved forwarding a recommendation to Council to not include the name 
of an individual councilmember attached to a discretionary grant.

A review of the grants and relinquishment of funds from city council members for 2019 
amounts to $30,130. These are funds that could have been used for office, travel (on 
city business) and other expenses.

Commission members have discussed recommending to Council for consideration 
options to address the issue:

1. An amendment requiring that all disbursements from the General Fund be 
designated as coming from the Council as a whole, without individual names 
attached to the donations.

2. Create another account specifically for discretionary grants, without reducing the 
D-13 account budget, to allow Councilmembers to continue recommending a 
grant or donation to a particular organization, without an individual name 
attached to the donation.

3. Eliminate discretionary grants. 

BACKGROUND
On May 21, 2020, the OGC directed four of its members to draft a proposed 
recommendation to Council related to relinquishment of Councilmembers’ office budget 
funds.

On June 18, 2020, the OGC voted to present this recommendation to Council.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
Not applicable.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
An advisory committee will enable collaborative discussion between the Council and the 
OGC to make recommendations governing relinquishments and grants from 
Councilmembers’ office budgets.  

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
The OGC has discussed recommending removal of councilmember names from office 
budget relinquishments, banning relinquishments for grants to organizations, and 

Page 2 of 4

152



creating and funding a separate account for donations to organizations that Council 
would control, but which would not have councilmember names attached to it.

CITY MANAGER
The City Manager takes no position on the content and recommendations of the 
Commission’s Report.

CONTACT PERSON
Brad Smith, Chair, Open Government Commission

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 3 of 4

153



RESOLUTION NO.  –N.S.

RESOLUTION CREATING A TEMPORARY JOINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE TO 
REVIEW COUNCIL OFFICE BUDGET RELINQUISHMENTS AND GRANTS

WHEREAS, pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code § 2.06.190.A.2, the Open 
Government Commission (“OGC” or “Commission”) may “advise the City Council as to 
any . . . action or policy that it deems advisable to enhance open and effective 
government in Berkeley”; and  

WHEREAS, while Commission members agree that it is admirable to donate to 
organizations that serve the City, some members feel the practice of using office budget 
funds for this purpose and attaching individual Councilmembers’ names to the donation 
may raise the public profile of a Councilmember and provide unfair advantage to an 
incumbent; and

WHEREAS, the Commission has expressed a desire to work collaboratively with the 
City Council to consider recommendations governing grants made from relinquishments 
of funds from Councilmembers’ office budgets.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that a 
temporary joint advisory committee consisting of three (3) members of the City Council 
and three (3) members of the Open Government Commission is hereby created to 
enable discussion between the Council and the OGC to make recommendations 
governing relinquishments and grants from Councilmembers’ office budgets.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council and the Open Government 
Commission each shall, as soon as practicable and by majority vote, appoint three 
members to the committee created by this resolution.

BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED that the committee created by this resolution shall hold its 
first meeting within 60 days of passage of this resolution and at that first meeting shall 
determine the need for any subsequent meetings and shall adopt a schedule for any 
such subsequent meetings. 

Page 4 of 4

154



Cheryl Davila
Councilmember 
District 2  

CONSENT CALENDAR
November 10, 2020

To:   Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From:   Councilmember Cheryl Davila 

Subject:  Implement Protocols for managing the City Council Meetings on Zoom 

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution with the following actions:
1. Implement the following protocols and criteria for City Council Meetings held on the Zoom 
Video Conferencing service, which shall take effect upon adoption, as well as adding the 
following section to the City Council Rules of Procedures: 

A. Gallery view showing the list of all participants and attendees;
B. Display the timer, during public comment on any item on the agenda, the timer for each 

speaker shall be displayed. The timer countdown shall start when the person starts 
speaking, and shall notify the speaker their time has exceeded the allotted time; but will 
stop when the speaker stops speaking. In the event of technical difficulties during a 
speaker presentation, the speaker time will stop and will resume when the speaker 
resumes speaking.

C. Time yielded, in order to yield extra time to the current speaker, attendees speaking 
shall state the name of the person yielding their time prior to speaking, each person 
yielding time must be on the zoom as an attendee at the time, time is yielded; 

D. The designated meeting host shall keep track of a list and record attendees requesting 
to speak in the order when they raised their hands for public comment. The list shall be 
presented on screen publicly that shows who raised their hand to speak on Zoom, how 
they were chosen and in what order.

E. Notify speakers they have exceeded their time, and allow to complete their sentence and 
state you are moving on to the next speaker, prior to cutting the speaker off;

F. Allow chat and reactions capabilities for attendees and participants; 
G. The chat should be saved and part of the public record.

2. Designate a third party community organization to host and manage the meeting with 
neutrality.

BACKGROUND
Since March 2020, the Berkeley City Council has held its Council Meetings on Zoom due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. For the last several Council meetings, many community members and 
public commenters have expressed concerns how the meetings are handled, currently. 

Community members do not feel there’s full transparency of the meetings: 
● There is no attendee list present nor gallery view of attendees; 

Page 1 of 4

155

arichardson
Typewritten Text
12



● The meeting setup doesn't allow members of the audience to yield their time to a current 
member of the public while in line, as was the case prior to COVID;

● Timer inequities where the on-screen timer handled by the City for Public Comment 
would start early or late as community members speak;

● Some speakers receive more time and/or less time, or are cut off; 
● There is no transparent way to know when the public raise their hand to speak on Zoom, 

how they were chosen and in what order? 

Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, when the City Council was holding its meeting in public, any 
member of the public who would like to give public comment to the City Council on any agenda 
item had to line up in order. Also, the public was able to see who was in the City Council 
meeting room. Finally, audience members were able to yield their time to the speaker on public 
comment.

Other protocols to consider for all zoom meetings throughout the COB: 
● Implement the recorded message at the beginning of all meetings including commission 

meetings and eliminate it being read by individuals;
● All meeting utilize timers for all items, on consent and action calendars throughout the 

City in all zoom meetings; 

Currently, Berkeley Community Media has a contract with the City of Berkeley to conduct the 
broadcast of the City Council meetings, whether they were held in person or on Zoom. Berkeley 
Community Media could be considered to manage the neutrality of the City Council Meetings on 
Zoom and implement the protocols. 

It is imperative that we must conduct our City Council meetings as accessible, equitable, fair, 
and transparent.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
To be determined.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
City Council must honor and respect the voices of our community, especially the most 
marginalized, in order to make sound policy decisions to protect our communities during this 
health and climate crisis.

CONTACT PERSONS
Cheryl Davila
Councilmember District 2                                                                                      
510.981.7120
cdavila@cityofberkeley.info

Eshal Sandhu
Jovi Tseng
Sanjita Pamidimukkala
District 2 Interns

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution 

REFERENCE:
1. Berkeley City Council Rules of Procedure and order effective June 16, 2020

Page 2 of 4

156

mailto:cdavila@cityofberkeley.info


RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BERKELEY, CALIFORNIA, 
IMPLEMENTING PROTOCOLS MANAGING CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ON ZOOM

WHEREAS, Since March 2020, the Berkeley City Council has held its Council Meetings on 
Zoom due to the COVID-19 pandemic. For the last several Council meetings, many community 
members and public commenters have expressed concerns how the meetings are handled, 
currently; and 

WHEREAS, Community members do not feel there’s full transparency of the meetings: 
● There is no attendee list present nor gallery view of attendees; 
● The meeting setup doesn't allow members of the audience to yield their time to a current 

member of the public while in line, as was the case prior to COVID;
● Timer inequities where the on-screen timer handled by the City for Public Comment 

would start early or late as community members speak;
● Some speakers receive more time and/or less time, or are cut off; 
● There is no transparent way to know when the public raise their hand to speak on Zoom, 

how they were chosen and in what order? 

WHEREAS, Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, when the City Council was holding its meeting in 
public, any member of the public who would like to give public comment to the City Council on 
any agenda item had to line up in order. Also, the public was able to see who was in the City 
Council meeting room. Finally, audience members were able to yield their time to the speaker 
on public comment; and

WHEREAS, Other protocols to consider for all zoom meetings throughout the COB: 
● Implement the recorded message at the beginning of all meetings including commission 

meetings and eliminate it being read by individuals;
● All meeting utilize timers for all items, on consent and action calendars throughout the 

City in all zoom meetings; 

WHEREAS, Currently, Berkeley Community Media has a contract with the City of Berkeley to 
conduct the broadcast of the City Council meetings, whether they were held in person or on 
Zoom. Berkeley Community Media could be considered to manage the neutrality of the City 
Council Meetings on Zoom and implement the protocols. 

WHEREAS, It is imperative that we must conduct our City Council meetings as accessible, 
equitable, fair, and transparent.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Berkeley hereby implement  the 
following protocols and criteria for City Council Meetings held on the Zoom Video Conferencing 
service, which shall take effect upon adoption, as well as adding the following section to the City 
Council Rules of Procedures: 

A. Gallery view showing the list of all participants and attendees;
B. Display the timer, during public comment on any item on the agenda, the timer for each 

speaker shall be displayed. The timer countdown shall start when the person starts 
speaking, and shall notify the speaker their time has exceeded the allotted time; but will 
stop when the speaker stops speaking. In the event of technical difficulties during a 
speaker presentation, the speaker time will stop and will resume when the speaker 
resumes speaking.

Page 3 of 4

157

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_City_Council/City%252520Council%252520Rules%252520of%252520Procedure%252520-%252520June%2525202020%252520-%252520FINAL.pdf


C. Time yielded, in order to yield extra time to the current speaker, attendees speaking 
shall state the name of the person yielding their time prior to speaking, each person 
yielding time must be on the zoom as an attendee at the time, time is yielded; 

D. The designated meeting host shall keep track of a list and record attendees requesting 
to speak in the order when they raised their hands for public comment. The list shall be 
presented on screen publicly that shows who raised their hand to speak on Zoom, how 
they were chosen and in what order.

E. Notify speakers they have exceeded their time, and allow to complete their sentence and 
state you are moving on to the next speaker, prior to cutting the speaker off;

F. Allow chat and reactions capabilities for attendees and participants; 
G. The chat should be saved and part of the public record.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council designate a third party community 
organization to host and manage the meeting with neutrality.

Page 4 of 4

158


	11-02 Agenda - Agenda Committee
	10-26 Minutes - Agenda Committee
	Draft 11-17 Agenda - Council
	Draft Item 12 Annual Report on Gifts Received
	Draft Item 18 Contract  Youth Listen Campaign
	Draft Item 19 Navigable Cities Framework
	Item 05 Upcoming Workshops
	Item 06 Council Referrals
	Item 07 Land Use Calendar
	Item 08 Legistative Body Meetings
	Item 09 Commission Reorganization
	Item 10 Amendments to the Berkeley Election
	Item 11 Relinquishments and grants
	Item 12 Implement Protocols



